AMENDA	1. CONTRACT ID CODE	ľ	PAGE OF PAGES			
2. AMENDN	ENT/MODIFICATION NO.	3. EFFECTIVE DATE	4. REO	UISITION/PURCHASE REQ. NO.	IS PRO	
0491		See Block 16C	1	Applicable		SECTION (I applicable)
6. ISSUED E	3Y · CODE	00601	7. ADM	INISTERED BY (If other than Item 6)	CODE	1
U.S. D Richla P.O. B	nd Operations Office epartment of Energy nd Operations Office ox 550, MSIN A7-80 nd WA 99352		17			<b>.</b>
8. NAME AN	D ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., street,	county, State and ZIP Coda)	(x) 9A.	MENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.		
Attn: J POST OF	SUPPORT ALLIANCE, LLC ENNIFER JAHNER FICE BOX 650 D WA 993523562		x 10A. DE	DATED (SEE ITEM 11) MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO -ACO 6-09RL14728 DATED (SEE ITEM 13)	).	
CODE 01	0605464	FACILITY CODE		/28/2009		
		11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO A				
Offers musi Items 8 and separate let THE PLACE virtus of this reference to	15, and returning copi ter or telegram which includes a reference to E DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OF	or to the hour and date specified in the s es of the amendment; (b) By acknowledg o the solicitation and amendment number FFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DAT already submitted, such change may be received prior to the opening hour and d	olicitation ging recei rs. FAIL E SPECI made by	or as amended, by one of the following meth pt of this amendment on each copy of the offer URE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT TO B FIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOU telegram or letter, provided each telegram or	ods: (a) r submit E RECE	ted;or(c)By EIVEDAT
	13. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO MOI	DIFICATION OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.	IT MOD	FIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESC	RIBED	IN ITEM 14.
CHECK ONE	A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PU ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.	RSUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE C	HANGES	SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE	CONT	RACT
	B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ appropriation data, etc.) SET FORTH It	ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT TH	E ADMIN	IISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in ) FAR 43.103(b).	baying o	ffice,
x	C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT I I.103 FAR 52.243-2 Changes D. OTHER (Specify type of modification an	- Cost Reimbursement Alt				
	er en ren topoony type of moonication an	a aunonyj				
. IMPORTANT		is required to sign this document and re		copies to the issuing of		
14. DESCRIPT	ION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION (On	ganized by UCF section headings, includ	ding solic	tation/contract subject matter where feasible.)	)	·
····· ALLY GL		LOW HY CLAUSE N. 34,	LU 1	ucolporate revisions fr	COT	rerence

This modification revises Section H, Clause H.54, to incorporate revisions to conference management requirements reflected in DOE Policy Flash 2015-36, AL 2015-09 "Conference Related Activities and Spending" and referenced in MSA Letter MSA-1504140A R1, dated October 8, 2015. The clause revision is reflected in Attachment 1. A conformed copy of Section H is included as Attachment 2.

This modification does not add additional obligated funds to the contract as the work is incrementally funded. Accordingly, work under the Contract, such as described herein, must be performed within the amount of funds which have been allotted to the contract in accordance with Clause I.82 FAR 52.232.22 - Limitation of Funds (Apr 1984).

Continued ...

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9 A or 10A, as hereitofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)	16A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or print)
Senniter about Contracts	Timothy E. Corbett
Aller and Aller 10/21/15	16B. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Contracting Officer, 16C. DATE SIGNED 16C. DATE SIGNED 16C. DATE SIGNED 10/22/2015
N\$)/7540-01-152-8070/ Revious edition unusable	STANDARD FORM 30 (REV. 10-83) Prescribed by GSA FAR (48 CFR) 53,243

	REFERENCE NO. OF DOCUMENT BEING CONTINUED	<u> </u>	
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	DE-AC06-09RL14728/0491	PAGE	OF
	DE AC06-03KE1472870491	2	92
NAME OF OFFEROR OR CONTRACT	OR		

MISSION SUPPORT ALLIANCE, LLC

ITEM NO. (A)	SUPPLIES/SERVICES (B)	QUANTITY (C)		UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
	In consideration of this Modification 491 agreed		(D)	(E)	(F)
	to herein as complete equitable adjustment, the				
	Contractor hereby releases the Government from				
	any and all liability under this contract for				
	further equitable adjustments attributable to	1		r.	
	such facts or circumstances giving rise to this				
	modification.				
	Attachments:				
	Attachment 1 - Changes Section H				
ар. С	Attachment 2 - Section H Conformed				
	There are no other changes to the target				
	There are no other changes to the terms and conditions of this contract				
	conditions of this contract.				
	Period of Performance: 05/26/2009 to 05/25/2017				
1					
Ì					
			Station and		
		1			
			No. Contraction	1	
			le J		
1					
	1				
		and the Aspen		TEC: Parameter	
I					
				2	
1			1	I	

Changes

The following revision are included with this modification:

## H.54 REPORT AND APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CONFERENCE RELATED ACTIVITIESCONFERENCE RELATED ACTIVITIES AND SPENDING

The contractor is required to report and obtain approval from the contracting officer before incurring any costs associated with conference related activities. Conference expenses are defined as follows:

Conference expenses are defined as all direct and indirect conference costs paid by the Government, whether paid directly by agencies or reimbursed by agencies to contractors, travelers, or others associated with the conference, but do not include funds paid under Federal grants to grantees. Conference expenses include any associated authorized travel and per diem expenses, rental of rooms for official business, audiovisual use, light refreshments, registration fees, ground transportation, and other expenses as defined by the Federal Travel Regulations (FTR). All outlays for conference preparation and planning should be included, but employee time for conference preparation should not be included. The FTR provides some examples of direct and indirect conference costs included within conference expenses. See 41 CFR 301-74.2. Conference expenses should be net of any fees or revenue received by the agency or contractor through the conference.

The Contractor agrees that:

- a) The contractor shall ensure that contractor-sponsored conferences reflect the DOE/NNSA's commitment to fiscal responsibility, appropriate stewardship of taxpayer funds and support the mission of DOE/NNSA as well as other sponsors of work. In addition, the contractor will ensure conferences do not include any activities that create the appearance of taxpayer funds being used in a questionable manner.
- b) For the purposes of this clause, "conference" is defined in Attachment 2 to the Deputy Secretary's memorandum of August 17, 2015 entitled "Updated Guidance on Conference-Related Activities and Spending."
- c) Contractor-sponsored conferences include those events that meet the conference definition and either or both of the following:
  - 1) The contractor provides funding to plan, promote, or implement an event, except in instances where a contractor:
    - i) covers participation costs in a conference for specified individuals (e.g. students, retirees, speakers, etc.) in a total amount not to exceed \$10,000 (by individual contractor for a specific conference) or
    - ii) purchases goods or services from the conference planners (e.g., attendee registration fees, renting booth space).
  - 2) The contractor authorizes use of its official seal, or other seals/logos/ trademarks to promote a conference. Exceptions include non-M&O contractors who use their seal to promote a conference that is unrelated to their DOE contract(s) (e.g., if a DOE IT contractor were to host a general conference on cyber security).
- d) Attending a conference, giving a speech or serving as an honorary chairperson does not connote sponsorship.

#### Changes

- e) The contactor will provide information on conferences they plan to sponsor with expected costs exceeding \$100,000 to DOE-RL for input in the Department's Conference Management Tool, including:
  - 1) Conference title, description, and date
  - 2) Location and venue
  - 3) Description of any unusual expenses (e.g., promotional items)
  - 4) Description of contracting procedures used (e.g., competition for space/support)
  - 5) Costs for space, food/beverages, audio visual, travel/per diem, registration costs, recovered costs (e.g., through exhibit fees)
  - 6) Number of attendees
- f) The contractor will not expend funds on the proposed contractor-sponsored conferences with expenditures estimated to exceed \$100,000 until notified of approval by the contracting officer.
- g) For DOE-sponsored conferences, the contractor will not expend funds on the proposed conference until notified by the contracting officer.
  - DOE-sponsored conferences include events that meet the definition of a conference and where the Department provides funding to plan, promote, or implement the conference and/or authorizes use of the official DOE seal, or other seals/logos/ trademarks to promote a conference. Exceptions include instances where DOE:
    - i) covers participation costs in a conference for specified individuals (e.g. students, retirees, speakers, etc.) in a total amount not to exceed \$10,000 (by individual contractor for a specific conference) or
    - ii) purchases goods or services from the conference planners (e.g., attendee registration fees; renting booth space); or provide funding to the conference planners through Federal grants.
  - 2) Attending a conference, giving a speech, or serving as an honorary chairperson does not connote sponsorship.
  - The contractor will provide cost and attendance information on their participation in all DOE-sponsored conferences to DOE-RL for input in the DOE Conference Management Tool.
- h) For *non-contractor sponsored conferences*, the contractor shall develop and implement a process to ensure costs related to conferences are allowable, allocable, reasonable, and further the mission of DOE/NNSA. This process must at a minimum:
  - 1) Track all conference expenses.
  - 2) Require the Laboratory Director (or equivalent) or Chief Operating Officer approve a single conference with net costs to the contractor of \$100,000 or greater.
- i) Contractors are not required to enter information on non-sponsored conferences in DOE'S Conference Management Tool.
- j) Once funds have been expended on a non-sponsored conference, contractors may not authorize the use of their trademarks/logos for the conference, provide the conference planners with more than \$10,000 for specified individuals to participate in the conference, or provide any other sponsorship funding for the conference. If a contractor does so, its expenditures for the conference may be deemed unallowable.

Changes

# PART I – THE SCHEDULE

# **SECTION H**

# SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

H.1	WORKFORCE TRANSITION1
H.2	EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION: PAY AND BENEFITS1
H.3	POST-CONTRACT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS
H.4	NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES15
H.5	OVERTIME CONTROL PLAN15
H.6	LABOR RELATIONS15
H.7	COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS16
H.8	INCUMBENT EMPLOYEES, BENEFIT PLANS, AND APPROVAL FOR SUBCONTRACTORS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLANS
H.9	DETERMINATION OF APPROPRIATE LABOR STANDARDS17
H.10	IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HANFORD SITE STABILIZATION AGREEMENT
H.11	WORKFORCE RESTRUCTURING
H.12	WORKERS' COMPENSATION
H.13	ENERGY EMPLOYEES OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESS COMPENSATION PROGRAM ACT (EEOICPA)
H.14	ADVANCE UNDERSTANDING ON COSTS
H.15	KEY PERSONNEL
H.16	SAFETY AND SECURITY KEY PERSONNEL
H.17	RADIOLOGICAL SITE SERVICES AND RECORDS, AND OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE SERVICES AND RECORDS
H.18	STOP-WORK AND SHUTDOWN AUTHORIZATION
H.19	ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR CONTRACTOR AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY (DOE) ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES
H.20	ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
H.21	SELF-PERFORMED WORK

H.22	EMERGENCY CLAUSE	36
H.23	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	36
H.24	PAYMENTS AND ADVANCES	38
H.25	ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR)	41
H.26	LITIGATION SUPPORT	42
H.27	ASSIGNMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF SUBCONTRACTS	42
H.28	DISPOSITION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY – FAILURE TO COMPLETE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE	42
H.29	PRIVACY ACT SYSTEMS OF RECORDS	43
H.30	RESPONSIBLE CORPORATE OFFICIAL	44
H.31	MENTOR-PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM	45
H.32	LOBBYING RESTRICTION (ENERGY AND WATER ACT 2006)	45
H.33	COUNTERINTELLIGENCE (CI) SITE SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS	45
H.34	SEPARATE CORPORATE ENTITY	45
H.35	PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT	46
H.36	WITHDRAWAL OF WORK	46
H.37	USE OF DOE FACILITIES	47
H.38	INFORMATION	47
H.39	PARENT ORGANIZATION SUPPORT	48
H.40	RESERVED	49
H.41	ELECTRONIC SUBCONTRACTING REPORTING SYSTEM (eSRS)	49
H.42	HANFORD SITE RECREATION POLICY	49
H.43	ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST BETWEEN HANFORD SITE CONTRACTS	50
H.44	HANFORD SITE SERVICES AND INTERFACE REQUIREMENTS MATRIX	50
H.45	RESERVED	53
H.46	CONTRACTOR INVESTMENT COMMITMENTS	53
H.47	SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO WORK FUNDED UNDER AMERICAN RECOVERY A REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009 (Feb 2009)	
H.48	RESERVED	57

H.49	EMERGENCY PROCEDURES	57
H.50	TRANSFORMATIONAL ENERGY ACTION MANAGEMENT (TEAM) INITIATIVE	57
H.51	SHIPMENT NOTIFICATION	58
H.52	EM-SPECIFIC SUSTAINABILITY INTERIM CLAUSE TO IMPLEMENT EISA 2007 AND EXECUTIVE ORDER 13514	59
H.53	NNSA/EM STRATEGIC SOURCING PARTNERSHIP	60
H.54	REPORT AND APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CONFERENCE RELATED ACTIVITIES	61
H.55	COST ESTIMATING SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	62
H.56	EARNED VALUE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM	66
H.57	CONTRACTOR BUSINESS SYSTEMS	70
H.58	ACCOUNTING SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION	74
H.59	CONTRACTOR PURCHASING SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION	76
H.60	CONTRACTOR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION	80
H.61	MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE PROGRAMS	81

# SECTION H

## SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

## H.1 WORKFORCE TRANSITION

#### (a) Incumbent Employees Hiring Preferences

The Contractor shall use the *Transition Period* to make hiring decisions and to establish the management structures necessary to conduct an employee relations program. In establishing an initial workforce, and through the first six (6) months after Contract award, the Contractor shall give a first preference in hiring for vacancies in non-managerial positions under this Contract to Incumbent Employees (as defined in paragraph (b) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*) who meet the qualifications for a particular position. This hiring preference takes priority over the hiring preference provided in the Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 952.226-74, Displaced Employee Hiring Preference*. The hiring preference does not apply to the Contractor's hiring of management staff (i.e., first line supervisors and above).

(b) <u>Employee Pay</u>

The Contractor shall provide equivalent pay to employees receiving a hiring preference as compared to pay provided by the predecessor contractor for substantially equivalent duties and responsibilities for at least the first year of the term of the Contract.

## H.2 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION: PAY AND BENEFITS

#### (a) Background on Benefit Plans

- (1) The Hanford Site Pension Plan (HSPP) is a multi-employer pension plan which includes three (3) separate benefit structures under the Plan: two (2) for bargaining unit employees and one (1) for non-bargaining unit employees (exempt and nonexempt). The HSPP covers eligible employees of certain U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) Hanford prime contractors and subcontractors. The HSPP is managed and administered by committees composed of representatives from each of the sponsoring employers.
- (2) The Hanford Site Savings Plans (HSSPs) cover eligible employees of certain DOE Hanford prime contractors and subcontractors. The HSSPs includes three (3) separate plans: two (2) plans for bargaining unit employees and one (1) plan for non-bargaining unit employees (exempt and nonexempt). The HSSPs are managed and administered by committees composed of representatives from each of the sponsoring employers.

- (3) The Hanford Employee Welfare Trust (HEWT) is a multiple employer welfare arrangement (MEWA). Health and welfare benefits are administered under the HEWT which contains provisions for a wide range of medical and insurance benefits for eligible Hanford workers of certain DOE Hanford prime contractors and subcontractors and their beneficiaries. The HEWT is managed and administered by the HEWT Committee, which is composed of representatives from each sponsoring employer.
- (4) The Contractor is required in paragraph (m) to offer a market-based package of retirement and medical benefits to Non-Incumbent Employees (as defined in paragraph (c)). These benefit plans are referred to herein as "Market-Based Plans."
- (5) It is anticipated that Fluor Hanford, Inc. (FHI), under Contract No. DE-AC06-96RL13200, will assume responsibility for sponsorship, management, and administration of certain pension and other benefit plans that currently are maintained by Fluor Fernald, Inc. under Contract No. DE-AC24-010H20115 (Legacy Plans).
- (6) The HSPP, HSSP and HEWT are collectively referred to herein as the "Plans" for purposes of the Section H Clauses entitled, Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits, Post-Contract Responsibilities for Pension and Other Benefit Plans, and Incumbent Employees, Benefit Plans, and Approval for Subcontractors to Participate in the Plans.

## (b) Incumbent Employees for the purposes of this Contract

Based on prior employment and the terms of the HSPP, Incumbent Employees are those employees eligible to participate, or to return to and participate, in the HSPP and accrue Benefit Service as defined in the HSPP.

(c) <u>Non-Incumbent Employees</u>

If an employee does not meet the definition of an Incumbent Employee with respect to the HSPP, as described in paragraph (b), the employee will be considered a Non-Incumbent Employee for the purposes of this Contract.

## (d) Human Resources Compensation Plan

The Contractor shall submit within 30 days of Transition start date a *Human Resources Compensation Plan* demonstrating how the Contractor will comply with the requirements of this Contract. The *Human Resources Compensation Plan* shall describe the Contractor's policies regarding compensation, pensions and other benefits, and how these policies will support at reasonable cost the effective recruitment and retention of a highly skilled, motivated, and experienced workforce.

## (e) <u>Total Compensation System</u>

The Contractor shall develop, implement and maintain formal policies, practices and procedures to be used in the administration of its compensation system consistent with FAR 31.205-6 and DEAR 970.3102-05-6, *Compensation for Personal Services* ("Total Compensation System"). DOE-approved standards (e.g., set forth in an advance understanding or appendix), if any, shall be applied to the Total Compensation System. The Contractor's Total Compensation System shall be fully documented, consistently applied, and acceptable to the Contracting Officer. Costs incurred in implementing the Total Compensation System shall be consistent with the Contractor's documented *Human Resources Compensation Plan* as approved by the Contracting Officer.

## (f) Reports and Information

The Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer with the following reports and information with respect to pay and benefits provided under this Contract:

- (1) An Annual Contractor Salary-Wage Increase Expenditure Report to include, at a minimum, breakouts for merit, promotion, variable pay, special adjustments, and structure movements for each pay structure showing actual against approved amounts.
  - (1) Within 30 days of Transition start date, a list of the top five (5) most highly compensated executives as defined in FAR 31.205-6(p)(2)(ii) and their total cash compensation at the time of Contract award, and at the time of any subsequent change to their total cash compensation. This should be the same information provided to the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) per FAR 52.204-10.
- (2)
- (3) An Annual Report of Contractor Expenditures for Employee Supplemental Compensation through iBenefits or its successor system no later than March 1 of each year.

#### (g) Cash Compensation

- (1) The Contractor shall establish pay programs for employees.
- (2) The Contractor shall submit the following information to the Contracting Officer for determination of cost allowability for reimbursement for cash compensation under the Contract:
  - (i) Any proposed major compensation program design changes prior to implementation.
  - (ii) An Annual Compensation Increase Plan (CIP)
  - . The Compensation Increase Plan (CIP) should include the following components and data:
    - (1) Comparison of average pay to market average pay.
    - (2) Information regarding surveys used for comparison.

(3) Aging factors used for escalating survey data and supporting information

- (4) Projection of escalation in the market and supporting information.
- (5) Information to support proposed structure adjustments, if any.
- (6) Analysis to support special adjustments.

(7) Funding requests for each pay structure to include breakouts of merit, promotions, variable pay, special adjustments, and structure movement. (a) The proposed plan totals shall be expressed as a percentage of the payroll for the end of the previous plan year. (b) All pay actions granted under the compensation increase plan are fully charged when they occur regardless of time of year in which the action transpires and whether the employee terminates before year end. (c) Specific payroll groups (e.g., exempt, nonexempt) for which CIP amounts are intended shall be defined by mutual agreement between the contractor and the Contracting Officer. (d) The Contracting Officer may adjust the CIP amount after approval based on major changes in factors that significantly affect the plan amount (for example, in the event of a major reduction in force or significant ramp-up).

(8) A discussion of the impact of budget and business constraints on the CIP amount.

(9) Comparison of pay to relevant factors other than market average pay.

(iii)

Individual compensation actions for the top contractor official (e.g., laboratory director/plant manager or equivalent and key personnel not included in the CIP). For those key personnel included in the CIP, DOE will approve salaries upon the initial contract award and when key personnel are replaced during the life of the contract. DOE will have access to all individual salary reimbursements. This access is provided for transparency; DOE will not approve individual salary actions (except as previously indicated).

The Contracting Officer's approval of individual compensation actions will be required only for the top contractor official (e.g., laboratory director/plant manager or equivalent) and key personnel as indicated in the above paragraph. The base salary reimbursement level for the top contractor official establishes the maximum allowable salary reimbursement under the contract. Unusual circumstances may require a deviation for an individual on a case-by-case basis. Any such deviation must be approved by the Contracting Officer.

- (3) Subject to the Hanford Site Severance Pay Plans, severance pay is not payable to an employee under this Contract if the employee:
  - (i) Voluntarily separates, resigns or retires from employment,
  - (ii) Is offered comparable employment with a successor/replacement contractor,
  - (iii) Is offered comparable employment with a parent or affiliated company, or
  - (iv) Is discharged for cause.
- (4) Service credit for purposes of determining severance pay does not include any period of prior service for which severance pay has been previously paid through a DOE cost reimbursement contract.

# (h) Pension and Other Benefit Programs

(1) The Contractor shall become a sponsor of the pension and other benefit plans identified in paragraph (a), and shall be responsible for the management and administration of the Market-Based Plans and Legacy Plans identified in paragraphs (a)(4) and (5).

- (2) The Legacy Plans shall be managed and administered separately from the HSPP, HSSP, HEWT, and Market-Based Plans in a manner so as to preserve the Legacy Plans' separate and distinct identities.
- (3) Unless otherwise required by applicable law or approved by the Contracting Officer, no implementation of a benefit program and no amendment to any of the plans identified in paragraph (a) or underlying trust documents thereto shall result in allowable costs under this Contract.
- (4) No presumption of allowability will exist when the Contractor implements a new benefit plan or makes changes to existing benefit plans identified in paragraph (a) until the Contracting Officer makes a determination of cost allowability for reimbursement for new or changed benefit plans.
- (5) Cost reimbursement for pension and other benefit plans identified in paragraph (a) sponsored by the Contractor will be based on the Contracting Officer's approval of Contractor actions pursuant to an approved Ben-Val and an Employee Benefits Cost Study as described below.
- (6) Unless otherwise stated, or as directed by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall submit the studies required in (i) and (ii) below. The studies shall be used by the Contractor in calculating the cost of benefits under existing benefit plans. An Employee Benefits Value (Ben-Val) Study Method using no less than 15 comparator organizations and an Employee Benefits Cost Survey comparison Method shall be used in this evaluation to establish an appropriate comparison method. In addition, the Contractor shall submit updated studies to the Contracting Officer for approval prior to the adoption of any change to a pension or other benefit plan.
  - (i) Separate Ben-Val studies are required every two years for all plans identified in paragraph (a). A Ben-Val is an actuarial study of the relative value (RV) of the benefits programs offered by the Contractor measured against the RV of benefit programs offered by comparator companies approved by the Contracting Officer. To the extent that the value studies do not address post retirement benefits other than pensions, the Contractor shall provide a separate cost and plan design data comparison for the post retirement benefits other than pensions using external benchmarks derived from nationally recognized and Contracting Officer approved survey sources; and,
  - (ii) Separate Employee Benefits Cost Study comparisons are annually required for all plans identified in paragraph (a). An Employee Benefits Cost Study is a study which analyzes the Contractor's employee benefits cost on a per capita per full time equivalent employee basis and as a percent of payroll and compares them with the costs reported by the Department of Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistics or other Contracting Officer approved, broad based, national survey.
- (7) When net benefit value exceeds the comparator group by more than five (5) percent (%), the Contractor shall submit a corrective action plan to the Contracting Officer for approval, unless waived by the Contracting Officer.

- (8) When the average total benefit per capita cost or total benefit cost as a percent of payroll exceeds the comparator group by more than 5%, and if required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall submit an analysis of the specific plan costs that are above the per capita cost range or total benefit cost as a percent of payroll and a corrective action plan to achieve conformance with a Contracting Officer directed per capita cost range or total benefit cost as a percent of payroll.
- (9) Within two (2) years of approval of the Contractor's corrective action plan by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall implement corrective action plans to align employee benefit programs with the benefit value and per capita cost range or percent of payroll as approved by the Contracting Officer.
- (10) The Contractor may not terminate any benefit plan during the term of the Contract without prior approval of the Contracting Officer in writing.
- (11) Cost reimbursement for Post Retirement Benefits (PRBs) is contingent on the specific terms of the plans identified in paragraph (a), as amended. Unless required by Federal or State law, advance funding of PRBs is not allowable.
- (12) All costs of administration shall be costs of each plan individually and allocated to participating plan sponsors. Costs of administration shall be directly billed to the plans and not charged by indirect allocation.
- (13) The Contractor shall maintain a sufficient number of trained and qualified personnel to perform all of the functions of the plans.
- (14) The Contractor shall render all ordinary and normal administrative services and functions which may be reasonably required. The Contractor shall annually provide an itemization of costs incurred for plan administration for each plan to the Contracting Officer within 60 days of the end of each plan year.
- (15) The Contractor shall manage Plan assets in a prudent manner. The Contractor shall develop and submit to the Contracting Officer an Investment Policy Statement for each plan that clearly defines investment return objectives and risk tolerances, and shall perform annual pension plan Investment Performance Self-Assessments. The Contractor performance self-assessments shall address investment objectives, development of the plans to achieve investment objectives, execution of the plans, performance monitoring, and appropriate corrective action planning and execution. The Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer with a copy of each plan's Investment Performance Self-Assessment.
- (16) The Contractor shall comply with the Investment Policy Statements developed for the plans. Should the Contractor incur higher costs because the Contractor fails to comply with all or part of the established Investment Policy Statements provided to DOE, the additional costs incurred are unallowable.
- (17) Each contractor sponsoring a pension and/or postretirement benefit plan will participate in the annual plan management process which includes written responses to a questionnaire regarding plan management, providing forecasted

estimates of future reimbursements in connection with the plan and participating in a conference call to discuss the contractor submission (see (j)(8) below for Pension Management Plan requirements).

- (18) Each contractor will respond to quarterly data calls issued through iBenefits, or its successor system.
- (19) Contractors shall submit new benefit plans and changes to plan design or funding methodology with justification to the Contracting Officer for approval. The justification must:
  - i. demonstrate the effect of the plan changes on the contract net benefit value or per capita benefit costs,
  - ii. provide the dollar estimate of savings or costs, and
  - iii. provide the basis of determining the estimated savings or cost.

(20)

#### (i) Establishment and Maintenance of Pension Plans for which DOE Reimburses Costs

- (1) The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of ERISA if applicable to the pension plan and any other applicable laws.
- (2) Employees working for the Contractor shall only accrue credit for service under this Contract after the date of Contract award.
- (3) Any pension plan maintained by the Contractor, for which DOE reimburses costs, shall be maintained as a separate pension plan distinct from any other pension plan which provides credit for current service not previously paid through a DOE cost reimbursement contract.
- (4) The following reports shall be submitted to DOE as soon as possible after the last day of the plan year by the contractor responsible for each designated pension plan funded by DOE but no later than the dates specified below:
  - (i) Actuarial Valuation Reports. The annual actuarial valuation report for each DOE-reimbursed pension plan and when a pension plan is commingled, the contractor shall submit separate reports for DOE's portion and the plan total by the due date for filing IRS Form 5500.
  - (ii) Forms 5500. Copies of IRS Forms 5500 with Schedules for each DOEfunded pension plan, no later than that submitted to the IRS.
  - (iii) Forms 5300. Copies of all forms in the 5300 series submitted to the IRS that document the establishment, amendment, termination, spin-off, or merger of a plan submitted to the IRS.
- (5) At least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of any changes to a pension plan, the Contractor shall submit the information required below, as applicable, to the Contracting Officer for approval or disapproval and a determination as to whether

the costs are deemed allowable pursuant to FAR 31.205-6, as supplemented by DEAR 970.3102-05-6.

- (1) For proposed changes to pension plans and pension plan funding, the Contractor shall provide the following to the Contracting Officer:
  - (A) a copy of the current plan document (as conformed to show all prior plan amendments), with the proposed new amendment indicated in redline/strikeout;
  - (B) an analysis of the impact of any proposed changes on actuarial accrued liabilities and costs;
  - (C) except in circumstances where the Contracting Officer indicates that it is unnecessary, a legal explanation of the proposed changes from the counsel used by the plan for purposes of compliance with all legal requirements applicable to private sector defined benefit pension plans;
  - (D) the Summary Plan Description; and,
  - (E) any such additional information as requested by the Contracting Officer.
- (6) The Contractor shall not terminate any pension plan without at least 60 days notice to and the approval of the Contracting Officer prior to the scheduled date of plan termination.
- (7) Each contractor pension plan shall be subjected to a limited-scope audit annually that satisfies the requirements of ERISA section 103, except that every third year the contractor must conduct a full-scope audit satisfying ERISA section 103. Alternatively, the contractor may conduct a full-scope audit satisfying ERISA section 103 annually. In all cases, the Contractor must submit the audit results to the contracting officer. In years in which a limited scope audit is conducted, the contractor must provide the contracting officer with a copy of the qualified trustee or custodian's certification regarding the investment information that provides the basis for the plan sponsor to satisfy reporting requirements under ERISA section 104.
- (8) The Pension Management Plan shall include the following:
  - (A) A Pension Management Plan (PMP) discussing the Contractor's plans for management and administration of all pension plans consistent with the terms of this contract. The PMP shall be updated and submitted to the Contracting Officer in draft annually no later than 45 days after the last day of the Plan year along with its draft actuarial valuation.
  - (B) Within thirty (30) days after the date of the submission, appropriate Contractor representatives shall meet with the Contracting Officer to discuss the Contractor's proposed draft annual update of the PMP to specifically discuss any anticipated changes in the projected pension contributions from the prior year's contributions and any discrepancies between the actual contributions made for the most recent year preceding

that meeting and the projected contributions for that year which the Contractor had submitted to the Contracting Officer the prior year. The annual revision of the PMP shall include:

- (i) The Contractor's best projection of the contributions which it will be legally obligated to make to the pension plan(s), beginning with the required contributions for the coming fiscal year, based on the latest actuarial valuation, and continuing for the following four years. This estimate will be based upon compliance with all applicable legal requirements relating to the determination of contributions and upon the assumptions set out in the plan document(s).
- (ii) If the actuarial valuation submitted pursuant to the annual PMP update indicates that the sponsor of the pension plan must impose pension plan benefit restrictions, the Contractor shall provide the following information:
  - (aa) The type of benefit restriction that will take place,
  - (bb) The number of Contractor employees that potentially could be impacted and the nature of the restriction (e.g., financial impact) by imposition of the required benefit restriction, and
  - (cc) The amount of money that would need to be contributed to the pension plan to avoid legally required benefit restrictions.
  - (iii) A detailed discussion of how the Contractor intends to manage the pension plan(s) to maximize the contribution predictability (i.e. forecasting accuracy) and contain current and future costs, to include rationale for selection of all plan assumptions that determine the required contributions and which impact the level and predictability of required contributions. The Contractor is required to annually establish a long term (e.g. five year) plan that outlines the projected retirement plan costs, and any planned action steps to be taken to better manage predictability. The contractor must also share the following information with the Department during the meeting:
    - (aa) Strategy for achieving and maintaining fully-funded status of the plan(s)
    - (bb) Investment policy statement for the plan, with any recent updates
    - (cc) Results of recent asset liability studies (required to be preformed every 3 years or after a significant event) including rational for maintaining current asset allocation strategy
    - (dd) Comparison of budget projections submitted to the Department to actual contributions
    - (ee) Any recent reports, findings, or recommendations provided by plan's investment consultant.
    - (ff) Actuarial experience studies to set the plan's actuarial assumptions (required to be performed every 3-5 years)

(iv) An assessment to evaluate the effectiveness of the Contractor's pension plan(s) investment management/results. The assessment shall include at a minimum: a review and analysis of pension plan investment objectives; the strategies employed to achieve those objectives; the methods used to monitor execution of those strategies and the achievement of the investment objectives; and a comparative analysis of the objectives and performance of other comparable pension plans. The Contractor shall also identify its plans, if any, for revising any aspect of its pension plan management based on the results of the review.

#### (9) <u>Reimbursement of Contractors for Contributions to Defined Benefit Pension Plans</u>

- (1) Contractors that sponsor single employer or multiple employer defined benefit pension plans will be reimbursed for the annual required minimum contributions under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), as amended by the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. Reimbursement above the annual minimum required contribution will require prior approval of the Contracting Officer. Reimbursement amounts will take into consideration all pre-funding balances and funding standard carryover balances.
- (2) Contractors that sponsor multi-employer DB pension plans will be reimbursed for pension contributions in the amounts necessary to ensure that the plans are funded to meet the annual minimum requirement under ERISA, as amended by the PPA. However, reimbursement for pension contributions above the annual minimum contribution required under ERISA, as amended by the PPA, will require prior approval of the Contracting Officer and will be considered on a case by case basis. Reimbursement amounts will take into consideration all pre-funding balances and funding standard carryover balances.

#### (10) <u>Terminating Operations</u>

When operations at a designated DOE facility are terminated and no further work is to occur under the prime contract, the following apply:

- (1) No further benefits for service shall accrue.
- (2) The Contractor shall provide a determination statement in its settlement proposal, defining and identifying all liabilities and assets attributable to the DOE contract.
- (3) The Contractor shall base its pension liabilities attributable to DOE contract work on the market value of annuities or lump sum payments or dispose of such liabilities through a competitive purchase of annuities or lump sum payouts.
- (4) Assets shall be determined using the "accrual-basis market value" on the date of termination of operations.
- (5) DOE and the Contractor(s) shall establish an effective date for spinoff or plan termination. On the same day as the contractor notifies the IRS of the spinoff or plan termination, all plan assets assigned to a spun-off or terminating plan shall be placed

in a low-risk liability matching portfolio until the successor trustee, or an insurance company, is able to assume stewardship of those assets.

- (11) <u>Terminating Plans</u>
  - (1) DOE contractors shall not terminate any pension plan (Commingled or site specific) without requesting Departmental approval at least 60 days prior to the scheduled date of plan termination.
  - (2) To the extent possible, the contractor shall satisfy plan liabilities to plan participants by the purchase of annuities through competitive bidding on the open annuity market or lump sum payouts. The contractor shall apply the assumptions and procedures of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.
  - (3) Funds to be paid or transferred to any party as a result of settlements relating to pension plan termination or reassignment shall accrue interest from the effective date of termination or reassignment until the date of payment or transfer.
  - (4) If ERISA or IRC rules prevent a full transfer of excess DOE reimbursed assets from the terminated plan, the contractor shall pay any deficiency directly to DOE according to a schedule of payments to be negotiated by the parties.
  - (5) On or before the same day as the contractor notifies the IRS of the spinoff or plan termination, all plan assets assigned to a spun-off or terminating plan shall be placed in a low-risk liability matching portfolio until the successor trustee, or an insurance company, is able to assume stewardship of those assets.
  - (6) DOE liability to a Commingled pension plan shall not exceed that portion which corresponds to DOE contract service. The DOE shall have no other liability to the plan, to the plan sponsor, or to the plan participants.
  - (7) After all liabilities of the plan are satisfied, the contractor shall return to DOE an amount equaling the asset reversion from the plan termination and any earnings which accrue on that amount because of a delay in the payment to DOE. Such amount and such earnings shall be subject to DOE audit. To effect the purposes of this paragraph, DOE and the contractor may stipulate to a schedule of payments.

## (j) Benefits for Incumbent Employees under the HSPP and HSSP

- (1) <u>HSPP</u>
  - (i) The Contractor shall allow individuals who are Incumbent Employees to accrue credit under the HSPP for service under this Contract. The Contractor shall timely supply the Plan Administrator(s) with the information required by the Administrator(s) necessary to effectively administer the Plan(s). Contributions to the HSPP as determined by the Plan Administrator shall be allowable costs under this Contract, subject to compliance with other provisions of this Contract and terms of the Plans, as amended. At Contract completion, the Contractor shall fully fund its

withdrawal liability under the HSPP; provided, however, that when or if this Contract expires or terminates, the Contractor shall continue as a plan sponsor of the HSPP pursuant to the Section H Clause entitled, *Post-Contract Responsibilities for Pension and Other Benefit Plans.* 

- (ii) The Contractor shall coordinate with the HSPP Administrator to ensure DOE receives an annual reporting and accounting of the Contractor's pension obligations, pursuant to Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 87, for those employees participating in the HSPP and supply the Administrator with all the information necessary to maintain the Federal tax qualifications of all Contractor and Hanford Site pension plans.
- (2) <u>HSSP</u>

Contributions to the HSSP shall be allowable costs under this Contract, subject to compliance with other provisions of this Contract and terms of the Plans, as amended.

## (k) Benefits for Incumbent Employees under the HEWT

- (1) The Contractor shall be a sponsor of the HEWT. Individuals who are Incumbent Employees for purposes of the HEWT shall be eligible to participate (in the HEWT and receive medical and other benefits under the HEWT consistent with the terms of that HEWT, as amended. The Contractor shall recognize service credited under the HEWT toward the service period required for benefits relating to vacation, sick leave, health insurance, severance, layoff, recall, and other benefits.
- (2) The Contractor shall, in a timely manner, supply the HEWT Administrator with the information required by the Administrator necessary to effectively administer the HEWT. The Contractor shall coordinate with the HEWT Administrator to ensure that DOE receives copies of all annual reports, actuarial reports, and submissions of FAS 106 data, and other reports as required by the Contracting Officer, of the Contractor's benefit obligations for those employees participating in the HEWT under this Contract. Contributions to the HEWT as determined by the HEWT Administrator shall be allowable costs under this Contract, subject to compliance with other provisions of this Contract.

## (I) <u>Pension and Other Benefits for Non-Incumbent Employees</u>

- (1) The Contractor shall offer a market-based package of retirement and medical benefits competitive for the industry to individuals who are not Incumbent Employees. If the Contractor meets all applicable legal and tax requirements, the Contractor may establish a separate line of business pursuant to Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 410 and 414 for the purpose of maintaining the Federal tax qualification of pension covering the Contractor's employees.
- (2) The Contractor shall ensure that DOE receives copies of all annual reports, actuarial reports, applicable FAS data, and other reports as required by the Contracting Officer for eligible employees with respect to this Contract.

(3) Any benefit programs established and/or maintained by the Contractor, for which DOE reimburses costs, shall meet the tests of allowability and reasonableness established by FAR 31.205-6 and DEAR 970.3102-05-6.

## (m) Reporting for Legacy Plans

The Contractor shall ensure that DOE receives copies of all annual reports, actuarial reports, submissions of FAS 87 and 106 data, as applicable, and other reports, as required by the Contracting Officer.

## H.3 POST-CONTRACT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

- (a) If this Contract expires or terminates and the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) has awarded a contract under which the new contractor becomes a sponsor of the Hanford Site Pension Plan (HSPP), Hanford Site Savings Plan (HSSP), Hanford Employee Welfare Trust (HEWT), Market-Based Plans and Legacy Plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract, and becomes responsible for management, and administration of the Market-Based Plans and Legacy Plans, the Contractor shall cooperate and transfer to the new contractor its responsibility for sponsorship, management and administration of the plans as appropriate and consistent with direction from the Contracting Officer.
- (b) If this Contract expires or terminates without a contract with a new contractor under which the new contractor becomes a sponsor of the HSPP, HSSP, HEWT, Market-Based Plans and Legacy Plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract, and becomes responsible for management and administration of the Market-Based Plans and Legacy Plans, or if the Contracting Officer determines that the scope of work under the Contract has been completed (any one such event may be deemed by the Contracting Officer to be "Contract Completion" for purposes of this clause), whichever is earlier, and notwithstanding any other obligations and requirements concerning expiration or termination under any other clause of this Contract, the following actions shall occur regarding the Contractor's obligations regarding all of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract at the time of Contract Completion:
  - (1) Subject to subparagraph (2) below, and notwithstanding any legal obligations independent of the Contract the Contractor may have regarding responsibilities for sponsorship, management, and administration of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract, the Contractor shall remain the sponsor of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract, the Contractor shall remain the sponsor of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, of this Contract, in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
  - (2) The parties shall exercise their best efforts to reach agreement on the Contractor's responsibilities for sponsorship, management and administration of

the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits, of this Contract prior to or at the time of Contract Completion. However, if the parties have not reached agreement on the Contractor's responsibilities for sponsorship, management and administration of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled. Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits, of this Contract prior to or at the time of Contract Completion, unless and until such agreement is reached, the Contractor shall comply with written direction from the Contracting Officer regarding the Contractor's responsibilities for continued provision of pension and other benefits under the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits, of this Contract, including but not limited to continued sponsorship of the plans as defined in paragraph (a) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay* and Benefits, of this Contract, in accordance with applicable legal requirements. To the extent that the Contractor incurs costs in implementing direction from the Contracting Officer, the Contractor's costs will be reimbursed pursuant to applicable Contract provisions.

# H.4 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

This Contract is for the exclusive benefit and convenience of the parties hereto. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as granting, vesting, creating or conferring any right of action or any other right or benefit upon past, present or future employees of the Contractor, or upon any other third party. This provision is not intended to limit or impair the rights which any person may have under applicable Federal statutes.

# H.5 OVERTIME CONTROL PLAN

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Contract, if the aggregate overtime premium pay as a percent (%) of base salary exceeds 2 % for non-represented employees or 10% for represented employees, the Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer separate annual *Overtime Control Plans* in accordance with the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.222-2, Payment for Overtime Premiums*.

# H.6 LABOR RELATIONS

- (a) The Contractor shall respect the right of employees to organize and to form, join, or assist labor organizations, to bargain collectively through their chosen labor representatives, to engage in other concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection, and to refrain from any or all of these activities.
- (b) The Contractor shall meet with the Contracting Officer or designee(s) for the purpose of reviewing the Contractor's bargaining objectives prior to negotiations of any collective bargaining agreement or revision there to and shall consult with and obtain the approval of the Contracting Officer regarding appropriate economic bargaining parameters, including those for pension and medical benefit costs, prior to the Contractor entering

into the collective bargaining process. During the collective bargaining process, the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer before submitting or agreeing to any collective bargaining proposal which can be calculated to affect allowable costs under this Contract or which could involve other items of special interest to the Government. During the collective bargaining process, the Contractor shall obtain the approval of the Contracting Officer before proposing or agreeing to changes in any pension or other benefit plans.

- (c) The Contractor will seek to maintain harmonious bargaining relationships that reflect a judicious expenditure of public funds, equitable resolution of disputes and effective and efficient bargaining relationships consistent with the requirements of FAR Subpart 22.1 and DEAR Subpart 970.2201 and all applicable Federal and state labor relations laws.
- (d) The Contractor will notify the Contracting Officer or designee in a timely fashion of all labor relations issues and matters of local interest including organizing initiatives, unfair labor practice, work stoppages, picketing, labor arbitrations, and settlement agreements and will furnish such additional information as may be required by the Contracting Officer.

# H.7 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS

The Contractor shall use its best efforts to ensure that collective bargaining agreements negotiated under this Contract contain provisions designed to assure continuity of services. All such agreements entered into during the Contract period of performance should provide that grievances and disputes involving the interpretation or application of the agreement will be settled without resorting to strike, lockout, or other interruption of normal operations. For this purpose, each collective bargaining agreement should provide an effective grievance procedure with arbitration as its final step, unless the parties mutually agree upon some other method of assuring continuity of operations. As part of such agreements, management and labor should agree to cooperate fully with the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The Contractor shall include the substance of this Clause in any subcontracts for protective services or other services performed on the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE)-owned site which will affect the continuity of operation of the facility.

# H.8 INCUMBENT EMPLOYEES, BENEFIT PLANS, AND APPROVAL FOR SUBCONTRACTORS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLANS

(a) DOE and the Contractor shall agree to those subcontractors that will be subject to the requirements to provide pension and other benefits for Incumbent Employees as defined in paragraph (b) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*. The Contractor shall submit its proposed agreement to DOE no later than thirty days prior to the close of the Transition Period, as defined in the Section F Clause entitled, *Period of Performance*.

After the parties have reached agreement, as set forth above, upon those subcontractors subject to paragraph (b) of the Section H Clause entitled *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, the Contractor may propose changes to the agreement. Prior to initiating any subcontracting action (e.g., issuing a solicitation) that may require a subcontractor to offer benefits to Incumbent Employees, the Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer with rationale to support the

benefits of its proposed change. Proposed changes shall not be effective or implemented without prior written approval by the Contracting Officer. Approval of the proposed change is at the unilateral discretion of the Contracting Officer.

- (b) The Contractor shall flow down to all subcontractors that are subject to the agreement in paragraph (a) of this Clause the requirements of paragraphs (g)(3) and (4), (i), (j), (k), and (l) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, and paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Section H clause entitled, *Post-Contract Responsibilities for Pension and Other Benefit Plans*.
- (c) For the purpose of determining allowability of costs, the Contractor shall not take any action that would result in the change of status of an Incumbent Employee with respect to Plans identified in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Section H Clause entitled, *Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits*, without the prior written approval of the Contracting Officer.

Subject to other subcontract review and approval requirements in this Contract, this Clause does not limit the Contractor's ability to utilize subcontractors as necessary to perform Contract requirements.

## H.9 DETERMINATION OF APPROPRIATE LABOR STANDARDS

- (a) The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) will determine the appropriate labor standards that apply to work activities in accordance with the *Davis-Bacon Act* or other applicable labor law. When requested by DOE, the Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer the information in the form and timeframe required by DOE, as may be necessary for DOE to render a determination on Contracts in excess of \$2,000 for construction, alteration, or repair, including painting and decorating, of public buildings and public works that involve the employment of laborers and mechanics.
- (b) Once a determination is made, the Contractor is responsible for compliance with the determination and incorporation of applicable labor standard requirements into subcontracts.

## H.10 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HANFORD SITE STABILIZATION AGREEMENT

- (a) The Hanford Site Stabilization Agreement (HSSA) for all construction work for the U. S. Department of Energy (DOE) at the Hanford Site, which is referenced in this Clause, consists of a Basic Agreement dated September 10, 1984, plus Appendix A, both of which may be periodically amended. The HSSA is hereby incorporated into this Contract by reference. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining the most current text from DOE.
- (b) This Clause applies to employees performing work under Contracts (or subcontracts) administered by DOE which are subject to the *Davis-Bacon Act*, in the classifications set forth in the HSSA for work performed at the Hanford Site.

- (c) Contractors and subcontractors at all tiers who are parties to an agreement(s) for construction work with a Local Union having jurisdiction over DOE construction work performed at the Hanford Site, or who are parties to a national labor agreement for such construction work, shall become signatory to the HSSA and shall abide by all of its provisions, including its Appendix A. Subcontractors at all tiers who have subcontracts with a signatory Contractor or subcontractor shall become signatory to the HSSA and shall abide by all of its provisions, including its Appendix A.
- (d) Contractors and subcontractors at all tiers who are not signatory to the HSSA and who are not required under paragraph (c) above to become signatory to the HSSA, shall pay not less and no more than the wages, fringe benefits, and other employee compensation set forth in Appendix A thereto and shall adhere, except as otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer, to the following provisions of the Agreement:
  - (1) Article VII Employment (Section 2 only);
  - (2) Article XII Non-Signatory Contractor Requirements;
  - (3) Article XIII Hours of Work, Shifts, and Overtime;
  - (4) Article XIV Holidays;
  - (5) Article XV Wage Scales and Fringe Benefits (Sections 1 and 2 only);
  - (6) Article XVII Payment of Wages-Checking In and Out (Section 3 only);
  - (7) Article XX General Working Conditions; and
  - (8) Article XXI Safety and Health.
- (e) The Contractor agrees to make no contributions in connection with this Contract to Industry Promotion Funds, or similar funds, except with the prior approval of the Contracting Officer.
- (f) The obligation of the Contractor and its subcontractors to pay fringe benefits shall be discharged by making payments required by this Contract in accordance with the provisions of the amendments to the *Davis-Bacon Act* contained in the Act of July 2, 1964 (Public Law 88-349-78 Statutes 238-239), and U.S. Department of Labor regulations in implementation thereof (Code of Federal Regulations Title 29 Parts 1 and 5).
- (g) The Contracting Officer may direct the Contractor to pay amounts for wages, fringe benefits, and other employee compensation if the HSSA, including its Appendix A, is modified by the involved parties.
- (h) In the event of failure to comply with paragraphs (c) (d) (e) (f) and (g), or failure to perform any of the obligations imposed upon the Contractor and its subcontractors hereunder, the Contracting Officer may withhold any payments due to the Contractor and may terminate the Contract for default.
- (i) The rights and remedies of the Government provided in this Clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies of the Government provided by law or under this Contract.

- (j) The requirements of this Clause are in addition to, and shall not relieve the Contractor of, any obligation imposed by other Clauses of this Contract, including Section I Clauses entitled, FAR 52.222-4, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act—Overtime Compensation, FAR 52.222-6, Davis-Bacon Act, FAR 52.222-7, Withholding of Funds, FAR 52.222-8, Payrolls and Basic Records, FAR 52.222-10, Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements, and FAR 52.222-12, Contract Termination – Debarment.
- (k) The Contractor agrees to maintain its bid or proposal records showing rates and amounts used for computing wages and other compensation, and its payroll and personnel records during the course of work subject to this Clause, and to preserve such records for a period of three (3) years thereafter, for all employees performing such work. Such records will contain the name and address of each such employee, his/her correct classification, rate of pay, daily and weekly number of hours worked, and dates and hours of the day within which work was performed, deductions made, and amounts for wages and other compensation covered by paragraphs (c) (d) (e) (f) and (g) hereof. The Contractor agrees to make these records available for inspection by the Contracting Officer and will permit him/her to interview employees during working hours on the job.
- (I) The Contractor agrees to insert the provisions of this Clause including this paragraph (k) in all subcontracts for the performance of work subject to the *Davis-Bacon Act*.

A copy of the Hanford Site Stabilization Agreement is located at:

## http://www.hanford.gov

The U.S. Department of Labor wage determinations for the *Davis-Bacon Act* and *Service Contract Act* are located at:

http://www.wdol.gov

## H.11 WORKFORCE RESTRUCTURING

- (a) Notwithstanding any other provision in this Contract, when the Contractor determines that a reduction of force is necessary, the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing and seek U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) approval. The Contractor shall take no further action until receiving approval and direction by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall provide information as directed by the Contracting Officer related to workforce restructuring activities and to enable compliance with Section 3161 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 1993 and any other DOE guidance pertaining to employees who may be eligible for provisions of the Act. The Contractor shall comply with the Hanford Site Workforce Restructuring Plan, as amended, and shall supply workforce restructuring related information and reports as needed by DOE. The Contractor shall extend displaced employee hiring preference in accordance with the Section I Clause entitled, DEAR 952.226-74, Displaced Employee Hiring Preference.
- (b) The requirements of H.11(a) apply to the following MSA pre-selected subcontractors: Dade Moeller & Associates Hanford; HPM Corporation-MSA; RJ Lee Group Inc-MSA;

PSI-Hanford, Inc; Westech International MSA LLC; Akima Hanford Services LLC; Abadan Hanford LLC; Vivid Learning Systems, Inc; Innovations Group, Inc; Test America Laboratories, Inc; Longnecker & Associates; and CSC Hanford LLC. The following pre-selected subcontractor: Lockheed Martin Services, Inc (or its successors) is excepted from the requirements of H.11(a) but is subject to the following: 1) The Contractor will provide DOE with a ten-working day advance notification for all future restructuring actions prior to announcement and/or implementation; and 2) Any costs incurred in anticipation of, or the defense of, claims associated with subcontractor layoffs including the costs of litigation, settlements, and adverse judgments, are unallowable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, severance is allowable for eligible employees in accordance with the *Hanford Site Severance Pay Plan*.

Contractors must provide actual and projected workforce reductions on an annual basis no later than March 15th of each year. The collection of Contractor workforce reduction data will be administered through the iBenefits system (<u>https://ibenefits.energy.gov</u>) for the collection of the following:

- Actual number of voluntary/involuntary separations for the prior Fiscal Year (FY); and
- Actual and projected number of voluntary/involuntary separations for the current FY. Please include any actual separations that have already occurred in the current fiscal year.

# H.12 WORKERS' COMPENSATION

The Hanford Workers' Compensation Program is an administrative function that provides for the support of the Hanford Site Workers' Compensation Program under U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) State of Washington Self-Insurance. Pursuant to State of Washington Revised Code (RCW) Title 51, DOE is a group self-insurer for purposes of workers' compensation coverage. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Contract, the coverage afforded by the workers' compensation statutes shall, for performance of work under this Contract at the Hanford Site, be subject to the following:

- (a) Under the terms of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries (L&I), DOE has agreed to perform all functions required by self-insurers in the State of Washington.
- (b) The Contractor shall take such action, and only such action, as DOE requests in connection with any accident reports, including assistance in the investigation and disposition of any claims thereunder and, subject to the direction and control of DOE, the conduct of litigation in the Contractor's own name in connection therewith.
- (c) Under RCW Title 51.32.073, DOE is the self-insurer and is responsible for making quarterly payments to the L&I. In support of this arrangement, the Contractor shall be responsible for withholding appropriate employee contributions and forwarding these contributions on a timely basis, plus the employer-matching amount to DOE.
- (d) The workers' compensation program shall operate in partnership with Contractor employee benefits, risk management, and environmental, safety, and health

management programs. The Contractor shall cooperate with DOE for the management and administration of the DOE-RL self-insurance program.

- (e) The Contractor shall be responsible for all predecessor Contractor claims that fall under DOE's self-insurance. The Contractor shall maintain and retain all claim data for information and reporting needs.
- (f) The Contractor shall certify as to the accuracy of the payroll record used by DOE in establishing the self-insurance claims reserves and cooperate with any state audit.
- (g) The Contractor shall provide statutory workers' compensation coverage for staff members performing work under this Contract outside of the State of Washington and not otherwise covered by the State of Washington workers' compensation laws.
- (h) Time-loss compensation shall be paid to injured workers in accordance with the RCW § 51.08.178 and other applicable requirements. Compensation paid to workers in excess of the amounts required by statute are unallowable costs under this contract.
- (i) Workers compensation loss income benefit payments, when supplemented by other programs (such as salary continuation) are to be administered so that total benefit payments from all sources shall not exceed 100 percent of the employee's net pay.
- (j) Upon request, the Contractor shall submit to DOE, or other party as designated by DOE, payroll records as required by Washington State Workers' Compensation laws.
- (k) Upon request, the Contractor shall submit to DOE, or other party as designated by DOE, the accident reports required by RCW Title 51, Section 51.28.010, or any other documentation requested by DOE pursuant to the Washington State Workers' Compensation laws.
- (I) Upon request, the Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer an evaluation and analysis of workers' compensation cost as a percent of payroll compared with the percentage of payroll cost reported by a nationally recognized Cost of Risk Survey that has been pre-approved by DOE.
- (m) The Contractor shall ensure all employees receive training and have a clear understanding of the workers' compensation process.
- (n) The Contractor shall develop and maintain a web site with Workers Compensation information and ensure that the web site is made available to employees within 45 days of the close of Transition.
- (o) The Contractor shall provide additional training to claimants on the workers' compensation process when a claim is filed. This training shall include but is not limited to information regarding company contacts, approvals needed for appointments, time off, documentation requirements, etc.
- (p) The Contractor shall submit ad hoc reports and other information as required by DOE.
- (q) The Contractor shall provide briefings to DOE as requested.

- (r) For purposes of workers' compensation, all entities included in the Contractor team arrangement, as defined below, shall be covered by DOE's self-insurance certification under Washington State Department of Labor and Industries for workers' compensation:
  - (1) Contractor team arrangement means an arrangement in which -
    - (i) Two or more companies form a partnership or joint venture to act as a potential prime Contractor; or
    - (ii) A potential prime Contractor agrees with one or more other companies to have them act as its subcontractors under a specified Government contract or acquisition program.
  - (2) Any changes to the Contractor team arrangement for purposes of workers' compensation coverage shall be subject to the prior approval of the Contracting Officer.
- (s) Subcontractors not meeting the Contractor teaming arrangement definition performing work under this Contract on behalf of the Contractor are not covered by the provision of the Memorandum of Understanding referenced above.
- (t) The Contractor shall flow-down to its subcontractors the requirements to provide statutory workers compensation coverage for the subcontractors' employees. The Contractor shall have no responsibility for subcontractor workers' compensation when it includes this requirement in the sub-contract(s).

## H.13 ENERGY EMPLOYEES OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESS COMPENSATION PROGRAM ACT (EEOICPA)

The Contractor shall provide support of the EEOICPA established under Title XXXVI of the *National Defense Authorization Act of 2001* (Public Law 106-398). The Contractor shall provide records in accordance with the Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 970.5204-3, Access to and Ownership of Records* in support of EEOICPA claims and the claim process under the EEOICPA.

The Contractor shall:

- (a) Verify employment and provide other records which contain pertinent information for compensation under the EEOICPA. The Contractor shall provide this support for itself and any named subcontractors' employees.
- (b) Provide reports as directed by the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE), such as costs associated with EEOICPA.
- (c) Provide an EEOICPA point-of-contact; this employee shall attend meetings, as requested by the U.S. Department of Energy Richland Operations Office (DOE-RL).
- (d) Locate, retrieve and provide a copy of any personnel and other program records as requested.

- (e) Perform records research needed to complete the Department of Labor (DOL) claims or to locate records needed to complete the claims or other related EEOICPA requests.
- (f) Ensure cost information is submitted to the DOE RL EEOICPA POC by the 10th of each month.
- (g) Ensure all EEOICPA claims received are completed and returned to DOE-RL within 45 calendar days of the date entered in the Federal Compensation Program Act (FCPA) electronic reporting system.

# H.14 ADVANCE UNDERSTANDING ON COSTS

The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) and the Contractor will, within 60 days after Contract award, reach advance understandings regarding certain costs under this Contract. Such advance understandings enable both DOE and the Contractor to determine the allocability, allowability, and reasonableness of such costs prior to their incurrence, thereby avoiding subsequent disallowances and disputes, and facilitating prudent expenditure of public funds. It is expected that costs covered by such advance understandings will include employee travel and relocation, and employee compensation and benefits. Generally, DOE expects the incurrence of costs to be consistent with the Contractor's corporate-wide policies consistently and uniformly applied throughout its domestic operations subject to the specific limitations, conditions, and exclusions of FAR Subpart 31.2, *Contracts with Commercial Organizations*, as supplemented by DEAR 931.2, *Contracts with Commercial Organizations*. Advance understandings will be appended to the Contract in the Section J Attachment entitled, *Advance Understanding of Costs*.

## H.15 KEY PERSONNEL

(a) Introduction

Key Personnel are considered essential to the success of all work being performed under this Contract. This Clause provides specific requirements for the Key Personnel Team, requirements for changes to Key Personnel, reductions in Contract fee for changes to Key Personnel, and identification of all Key Personnel for this Contract.

## (b) Key Personnel Team Requirements

All Key Persons under this Contract are collectively referred to as the Key Personnel Team. The Offeror's Key Personnel Team shall consist of, at a minimum, the position of Project Manager, the position(s) associated with management of the five functional areas (Safety, Security, and Environment; Site Infrastructure and Utilities; Site Business Management; Information Resources and Content Management; and Portfolio Management) contained in Section C, *Statement of Work* and any other persons included in paragraph (f) below. The Key Person associated with the five functional areas shall be in a direct-reporting relationship with the Project Manager. The Contracting Officer and designated Contracting Officer Representative(s) shall have direct access to the Key Personnel. In addition to the definition contained in the Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 952.231-71, Insurance—Litigation and Claims*, Key Persons are considered managerial personnel.

#### (c) <u>Definitions</u>

- (1) For the purposes of this Clause, *Changes to Key Personnel* is defined as: (i) any change to the position assignment of a current Key Person under the Contract, except for a person who acts for short periods of time, in the place of a Key Person during his or her absence, the total time of which shall not exceed 30 working days during any given year; (ii) utilizing the services of a new substitute Key Person for assignment to the Contract; or (iii) assigning a current Key Person for work outside the Contract.
- (2) For the purposes of this Clause, *Beyond the Contractor's Control* is defined as an event for which the Contractor lacked legal authority or ability to prevent *Changes to Key Personnel.*

## (d) <u>Requirements for Changes to Key Personnel</u>

- (1) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer and request approval in writing at least 60 days in advance of any changes to Key Personnel.
- (2) The Contractor shall not make a change in Key Personnel without prior written approval of the Contracting Officer.
- (3) No Key Person position shall remain vacant for a period more than 30 days following Contracting Officer approval of a change in Key Personnel.
- (4) Approval of changes to Key Personnel is at the unilateral discretion of the Contracting Officer.

#### (e) <u>Contract Fee Reductions for Changes to Key Personnel</u>

- (1) Notwithstanding approval by the Contracting Officer, any time the Project Manager (the initial Project Manager or any substitution approved by the Contracting Officer) is changed for any reason within two (2) years of being placed in the position, *Available Fee* described in Section B, *Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs*, will be permanently reduced by \$500,000 for each and every occurrence of a change to the Project Manager. A change to the Project Manager beyond the Contractor's control shall not result in a permanent reduction of fee under this paragraph.
- (2) Notwithstanding approval by the Contracting Officer, any time a Key Person other than the Project Manager (any initial Key Person or any substitution approved by the Contracting Officer) is changed for any reason within two (2) years of being placed in the position, *Available Fee* described in Section B, *Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs*, will be permanently reduced by \$100,000 for each and every occurrence of a change to the Key Person. A change to a Key Person other than the Project Manager beyond the Contractor's control shall not result in a permanent reduction of fee under this subsection.

(3) The Contractor may request in writing that the Contracting Officer consider waiving all or part of a reduction in Contract fee. Such written request shall include the factual basis for the request. The Contracting Officer shall have unilateral discretion to make the determination to waive or not waive all or part of a reduction in Contract fee.

#### (f) Key Personnel for this Contract

The list of Key Personnel for this Contract will be amended during the course of the Contract to add or delete Key Personnel as approved by the Contracting Officer. The following is the current list of Key Personnel for this Contract:

Name	Position
Mr. Bill Johnson	MSA President/General Manager
Mr. Robert Wilkinson	Chief Operations Officer
Mr. P. K. Brockman	Vice President of Site Services & Interface Management
Mr. Craig W. Walton	Vice President of Emergency Services
Mr. Michael Wilson	Vice President of Environmental, Safety, Health, and Training
Ms. Lori Fritz	Vice President of Public Works
Mr. Todd Eckman	Vice President of Information Management
Mr. Steve Young	Vice President of Portfolio Management

## H.16 SAFETY AND SECURITY KEY PERSONNEL

#### (a) Introduction.

Safety and Security Key Personnel are considered integral to the success of all work being performed under this Contract. This Clause provides specific requirements for the Safety and Security Key Personnel, requirements for changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel, reduction in Contract fee for changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel, and identification of all Safety and Security Key Personnel for this Contract.

#### (b) <u>Safety and Security Key Personnel Requirements.</u>

As part of Transition, the Contractor shall provide a *Transition Plan* that includes the resumes for proposed persons to fill the positions of the Director of Safeguards and Security, Chief of Hanford Patrol, Chief of Hanford Fire, and Fire Marshal. DOE will review the proposed persons in the *Transition Plan*, and upon DOE approval of the *Transition Plan*, the proposed persons will be designated as Safety and Security Key Personnel. In addition to the definition contained in the Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 952.231-71, Insurance—Litigation and Claims*, Safety and Security Key Personnel are considered managerial personnel. The Contracting Officer and designated Contracting Officer Representative(s) shall have direct access to the Key Personnel.

#### (c) <u>Definitions</u>

- (1) For the purposes of this Clause, *Changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel* is defined as:
  - Any change to the position assignment of a current Safety and Security Key Person under the Contract, except for a person who acts for short periods of time, in the place of a Safety and Security Key Person during his or her absence, the total time of which shall not exceed 30 working days during any given year;
  - (ii) Utilizing the services of a new substitute Safety and Security Key Person for assignment to the Contract; or
  - (iii) Assigning a current Safety and Security Key Person for work outside the Contract.
- (2) For the purposes of this Clause, *Beyond the Contractor's Control* is defined as an event for which the Contractor lacked legal authority or ability to prevent *Changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel.*

#### (d) <u>Requirements for Contractor Changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel</u>

- (1) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer and request approval in writing at least 60 days in advance of any changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel.
- (2) The Contractor shall not make a change in Safety and Security Key Personnel without prior written approval of the Contracting Officer.
- (3) No Safety and Security Key Person position shall remain vacant for a period more than 30 days following Contracting Officer approval of a change in Safety and Security Key Personnel.
- (4) Approval of changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel is at the unilateral discretion of the Contracting Officer.
- (5) The requirements of this paragraph (d) do not apply to the event described in paragraph (f).

## (e) <u>Contract Fee Reductions for Changes to Safety and Security Key Personnel</u>

- (1) Notwithstanding approval by the Contracting Officer, any time a Safety and Security Key Person (any initial Safety and Security Key Person or any substitution approved by the Contracting Officer) are changed for any reason within two (2) years of being placed in the position, *Available Fee* described in Section B, *Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs*, will be permanently reduced by \$100,000 for each and every occurrence of a change to the Safety and Security Key Person. A change to a Safety and Security Key Person beyond the Contractor's control shall not result in a permanent reduction of fee under this subsection.
- (2) The Contractor may request in writing that the Contracting Officer consider waiving all or part of a reduction in Contract fee. Such written request shall include the factual basis for the request. The Contracting Officer shall have unilateral discretion to make the determination to waive or not waive all or part of a reduction in Contract fee.

## (f) <u>Removal of Safety and Security Key Personnel</u>

At the unilateral discretion of the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE), the Contracting Officer may direct immediate removal of any or all Safety and Security Key Personnel from their respective position(s). In event of removal, the Contractor shall immediately appoint an interim person and obtain concurrent approval by the Contracting Officer. Within six (6) months of the removal, the Contractor shall propose a new person and request written approval from the Contracting Officer.

#### (g) Safety and Security Key Personnel for this Contract

The list of Safety and Security Key Personnel for this Contract will be amended during the course of the Contract to add or delete Safety and Security Key Personnel as approved by the Contracting Officer. The following is the current list of Safety and Security Key Personnel for this Contract:

<u>Name</u>	Position
Craig W. Walton	Vice President of Emergency Services & Director of Safeguards and Security
Monty Giulio	Chief of Hanford Patrol
Norbert Kuhman	Chief of Hanford Fire
Richard J. Kobelski	Fire Marshal

# H.17 RADIOLOGICAL SITE SERVICES AND RECORDS, AND OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE SERVICES AND RECORDS

- (a) The Contractor shall obtain Radiological Site Services (RSS) and occupational medicine services for all Contractor and subcontractor employees performing hazardous work that may expose workers to chemical, physical (including radiological), biological, and/or similar hazards. The Contractor shall identify required RSS and occupational medicine services as required by Section C, *Statement of Work, Government-Furnished Services and Information (GFS/I)*.
- (b) RSS are obtained as specified in Contract Section J Attachment entitled, Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix. RSS includes external dosimetry, internal dosimetry services, radiological instrumentation program, and radiological records services. The Section I Clauses entitled, DEAR 952.223-75, Preservation of Individual Occupational Radiation Exposure Records and DEAR 970.5204-3, Access to and Ownership of Records are implemented as follows with respect to radiological records: All radiological exposure records generated during the performance of Hanford-related activities will be maintained by the designated provider of this service listed in the Section J Attachment entitled, Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix and are the property of the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE).
- (c) Occupational medicine services are provided under this Contract by the Hanford Site occupational medicine services contractor as specified in Contract Section J Attachment entitled, *Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix*. The Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 970.5204-3, Access to and Ownership of Records* is implemented as follows with respect to occupational medicine records: All occupational medicine records generated during the performance of Hanford-related activities will be maintained by the Hanford Site occupational medicine services provider and are the property of DOE.

# H.18 STOP-WORK AND SHUTDOWN AUTHORIZATION

(a) <u>Definitions:</u>

Imminent Danger: Any condition or practice such that a hazard exists that could reasonably be expected to cause death, serious physical harm, or other serious hazard to employees, unless immediate actions are taken to mitigate the effects of the hazard and/or remove employees from the hazard.

Adversely Affects Safe Operation of Facility or Serious Facility Damage: A condition, situation, or activity that if not terminated or mitigated could reasonably be expected to result in: nuclear criticality; facility fire/explosion; major facility or equipment damage or loss; or, a facility evacuation response.

Stop Work Criteria:

1. Conditions exist that pose an imminent danger to the health and safety of workers or the public; or

- 2. Conditions exist, that if allowed to continue, could adversely affect the safe operation of, or could cause serious damage to, the facility; or
- 3. Conditions exist, that if allowed to continue, could result in the release from the facility to the environment of radiological or chemical effluents that exceed applicable regulatory requirements or approvals.

#### (b) DOE Stop Work Order.

In accordance with Section I, *Contract Clause*, I.143, DEAR 970.5223-1 *Integration of Environment, Safety, and Health into Work Planning and Execution* the DOE Contracting Officer has the ability to issue a DOE Stop Work Order stopping work in whole or in part if:

- 1. the contractor fails to provide resolution of any noncompliance with applicable requirements and Safety Management System or if,
- 2. at any time the contractor's acts or failure to act causes substantial harm or an imminent danger to the environment or health and safety of employees or the public.

In addition, a DOE Stop Work Order can be initiated if the Stop Work Criteria as defined in Section H.17 (a) is met dependent on the severity and extent of the condition.

The DOE Stop Work Order shall be executed in accordance with Section F, *Deliverables or Performance*, F.3 FAR 52.242-15, STOP-WORK ORDER

(c) DOE Stop Work Action.

DOE personnel provide safety oversight of contractor operations and have the authority to initiate a DOE Stop Work Action if the Stop Work Criteria as defined in Section H.17 (a) is met. DOE personnel have the authority to shutdown an entire facility, activity, or job. Following a DOE Stop Work Action the contractor shall:

- 1. immediately stop the identified activity or activities (up to and including entire plant shutdown);
- 2. place the area, activity, facility, etc. into a safe condition;
- 3. determine actions necessary to address the unsafe condition;
- 4. provide proposed corrective actions to the DOE initiator of the DOE Stop Work Action;
- 5. prior to restarting work, inform the DOE initiator that the corrective actions allowing for restart have been completed;
- 6. restart work only after the unsafe condition is mitigated and the DOE has given verbal direction to allow restart; and
- 7. if requested, provide DOE a Corrective Action Plan subsequent to the resumption of work in accordance with contractual requirements.

#### (d) Contractor Stop Work Action

- 1. The contractor shall establish a stop work process/procedure that:
  - a. meets the requirement of 10 CFR 851.20, *Management responsibilities and* worker rights and responsibilities
  - b. at a minimum uses the Stop Work Criteria defined in Section H.17 (a) for when a Contractor Stop Work Action is required; and
  - c. meets the tenets of the "Stop Work Policy."
- 2. Upon initiating a Contractor Stop Work Action the contractor shall:
  - a. immediately stop the identified activity or activities (up to and including entire plant shutdown);
  - b. place the area, activity, facility, etc. into a safe condition;
  - c. notify the DOE Facility Representative if the Contractor's Stop Work Action meets the Stop Work Criteria defined in Section H.17 (a), or notification of facility management is required for the issue;
  - d. determine actions necessary to address the unsafe condition;
  - e. restart work only after the unsafe condition is mitigated.

#### (e) <u>Stop Work Policy.</u>

The following represent the site's Stop Work Policy:

*Stop Work Responsibility:* Every Hanford site employee, regardless of employer, has the responsibility and authority to stop work IMMEDIATELY, without fear of reprisal, when the employee is convinced:

- 1. Conditions exist that pose a danger to the health and safety of workers or the public; or
- 2. Conditions exist, that if allowed to continue, could adversely affect the safe operation of, or could cause serious damage to, a facility; or
- 3. Conditions exist, that if allowed to continue, could result in the release from the facility to the environment of radiological or chemical effluents that exceed applicable regulatory requirements or approvals.

*Reporting Unsafe Conditions:* Employees are expected to report any activity or condition which he/she believes is unsafe. Notification should be made to the affected worker(s) and then to the supervisor or designee at the location where the activity or condition exists. Following notification, resolution of the issue resides with the responsible supervisor.

*Right to a Safe Workplace:* Any employee who reasonably believes that an activity or condition is unsafe is expected to stop or refuse work without fear of reprisal by management or coworkers and is entitled to have the safety concern addressed prior to participating in the work.

Stop Work Resolution: If you have a "stop work" issue that has not been resolved through established channels, immediately contact your employer's Safety Representative or your Union Safety Representative. Alternatively, you may contact the employer's Employee Concerns Program or the DOE Employee Concerns Program.

# H.19 ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR CONTRACTOR AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY (DOE) ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES

- (a) In this Clause:
  - (1) "Environmental" requirements means requirements imposed by applicable Federal, state, and local environmental laws and regulations, including, without limitation, statutes, ordinances, regulations, court orders, consent decrees, administrative orders, or compliance agreements including the *Hanford Federal Facility Agreement and Consent Order*, consent orders, permits, and licenses; and
  - (2) "Party" means either the Contractor or DOE.
- (b) Responsibility and liability for fines or penalties arising from or related to violations of environmental requirements shall be borne by the party causing the violation regardless of which party:
  - (1) The cognizant regulatory authority fines or penalizes;
  - (2) Signs permit applications (including situations where DOE signs defective or nonconforming permit applications or other environmental submittals prepared by or under the direction of the Contractor), manifests, reports, or other required documents;
  - (3) Is a permittee; or
  - (4) Is the named subject of an enforcement action or assessment of a fine or penalty.

- (c) Consequently, if the Contractor causes a violation:
  - (1) All fines and penalties arising from or related to violations of environmental requirements are unallowable costs. If DOE pays a fine or penalty for a violation that the Contractor caused, the amount of the fine or penalty shall be due from the Contractor, and DOE may immediately offset that amount against payments to which the Contractor is otherwise entitled for allowable costs and fee, or any other funds otherwise owed by the Government to the Contractor; and
  - (2) In accordance with subsection (e) of the Section I Clause entitled, DEAR 952.231-71, Insurance-Litigation and Claims, costs of challenging or defending actions brought against the Contractor for violations of environmental requirements are specifically disallowed. However, if the Contracting Officer provides prior written authorization to challenge or defend against the action, the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with DEAR 952.231-71, Insurance-Litigation and Claims. If the Contractor proceeds with the action without the prior written authorization of the Contracting Officer, the costs of the challenge or defense may be allowable if there is no settlement, conviction, or finding of liability.

## H.20 ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

- (a) <u>General</u>. The Contractor is required to comply with all environmental laws, regulations, and procedures applicable to the work being performed under this Contract. This includes, but is not limited to, compliance with applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations, interagency agreements such as the *Hanford Federal Facility Agreement and Consent Decree* [also known as the Tri-Party Agreement (TPA)], consent orders, consent decrees, and settlement agreements between the U. S. Department of Energy (DOE) and Federal and state regulatory agencies. For the purposes of this Contract, the TPA constitutes a requirement pursuant to which the Contractor agrees to plan and perform the Contract work.
- (b) <u>Environmental Permits</u>. This Clause addresses three permit scenarios, where the Contractor is the sole permittee; where the Contractor and DOE are joint permittees; and where multiple Contractors are permittees.

- (1) Contractor as Sole Permittee. To the extent permitted by law and subject to other applicable provisions of the Contract that impose responsibilities on DOE, and provisions of law that impose responsibilities on DOE or third parties, the Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining in its own name, shall sign, and shall be solely responsible for compliance with all permits, authorizations and approvals from Federal, State, and local regulatory agencies which are necessary for the performance of the work required of the Contractor under this Contract. Under this permit scenario, that Contractor shall make no commitments or set precedents that are detrimental to DOE or other contractors. The Contractor shall coordinate its permitting activities with DOE, and with other Hanford Site contractors which may be affected by the permit or precedent established therein, prior to taking the permit action.
- (2) DOE as Permitee, or Contractor and DOE as Joint Permittees. Where appropriate, required by law, or required by applicable regulatory agencies, DOE will sign permits as permittee, or as owner or as owner/operator with the Contractor as operator or co-operator, respectively. DOE will co-sign hazardous waste permit applications as owner/operator where required by applicable law. In this scenario, the Contractor shall coordinate its actions with DOE. DOE is responsible for timely notification to the Contractor of any issues or changes in the regulatory environment that impact or may impact Contractor implementation of any permit requirement. The Contractor shall be responsible for timely notification to DOE of any issues or changes in the regulatory environment that impact or may permit requirement. Notification need not be in writing.
- (3) Multiple Contractors as Permittees. Where appropriate, in situations where multiple contractors are operators or co-operators of operations requiring environmental permits, DOE will sign such permits as owner or co-operator and affected contractors shall sign as operators, or co-operators. In this scenario, the Contractor shall coordinate as appropriate with DOE and other contractors affected by the permit.
- (c) Permit Applications. The Contractor shall provide to DOE for review and comment in draft form any permit applications and other regulatory materials necessary to be submitted to regulatory agencies for the purposes of obtaining a permit. In the event that the permit application is required to be co-signed, submitted by DOE, or is related to a permit in which DOE is a permittee, the Contractor shall provide the application for review and comment. Whenever reasonably possible all such materials shall be provided to DOE initially not later than 90 days prior to the date they are to be submitted to the regulatory agency. The Contractor shall normally provide final regulatory documents to DOE at least 30 days prior to the date of submittal to the regulatory agencies for DOE's final review and signature or concurrence which shall be performed by DOE in a prompt manner. Special circumstances may require permits to be submitted in a shorter time frame. The Contractor may submit for DOE's consideration, requests for alternate review, comment, or signature, schedules for environmental permit applications or other regulatory materials covered by this Clause. Any such requests shall be submitted 30 days before such material would ordinarily be required to be provided to DOE. Any such schedule revision shall be effective only upon approval from the Contracting Officer.

- (d) <u>Financial Responsibility.</u> DOE agrees that if bonds, insurance, or administrative fees are required as a condition for permits obtained by the Contractor under this Contract, such costs shall be allowable. In the event such costs are determined by DOE to be excessive or unreasonable, DOE will provide the regulatory agency with an acceptable form of financial responsibility. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor or its parent be required to provide any corporate resources or corporate guarantees to satisfy such regulatory requirements.
- Copies, Technical Information. The Contractor shall provide DOE copies of all (e) environmental permits, authorizations, and regulatory approvals issued to the Contractor by the regulatory agencies. DOE will, upon request, make available to the Contractor access to copies of all environmental permits, authorizations, and approvals issued by the regulatory agencies to DOE that the Contractor may need to comply with applicable law. The Contractor and DOE will provide to each other copies of all documentation, such as, letters, reports, or other such materials transmitted either to or from regulatory agencies relating to the Contract work. The Contractor and DOE shall maintain all necessary technical information required to support applications for revision of DOE or other Hanford Site Contractor environmental permits when such applications or revisions are related to the Contractor's operations. Upon request, the Contractor or DOE shall provide to the other access to all necessary and available technical information required to support applications for or revisions to permits or permit applications. The Contractor shall provide to DOE a certification statement relating to such technical information in the form required by the following paragraph.
- (f) <u>Certifications</u>. The Contractor shall provide a written certification statement attesting that information DOE is requested to sign was prepared in accordance with applicable requirements. The Contractor shall include the following certification statement in the submittal of such materials to DOE:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

The certification statement shall be signed by the individual authorized to sign such certification statements submitted to Federal or state regulatory agencies under the applicable regulatory program.

- (g) <u>Fines, Penalties, Allowable Costs</u>. The Contractor shall accept, in its own name, service of proposed notices, or notices of, correction, penalty, fine, violation, administrative orders, citation, or notice of alleged violations, (e.g., Notice of Correction [NOC], Notice of Penalty [NOP], Notice of Fine [NOF], Preliminary Notice of Violation [PNOV], Notice of Violation [NOV], and Notice of Alleged Violation [NOAV]) and any similar type notices issued by Federal or State regulators to the Contractor resulting from or relating to Contractor's performance of work under this Contract, without regard to liability. The Contractor shall immediately notify DOE of such receipt and shall provide copies or originals of such documents as soon as possible thereafter.
- (h) <u>Negotiations</u>. DOE may in its discretion choose to be in charge of, and direct, all negotiations with regulatory agencies regarding permits, fines, penalties, and any other proposed notice, notice, administrative order, and any similar type of notice as described in paragraph (g) above. As directed or required by DOE, the Contractor shall participate in negotiations with regulatory agencies; however, the Contractor shall not make any commitments or offers to regulators purporting to bind or binding the Government in any form or fashion, including monetary obligations, without receiving written authorization or concurrence from the Contracting Officer or his/her authorized representative prior to making such offers/commitments. Failure to obtain such advance written approval may result in otherwise allowable costs being declared unallowable and/or the Contractor being liable for any excess costs to the Government associated with or resulting from such offers/commitments.
- (i) <u>Termination, Expiration, Permit Transfer</u>. In the event of expiration or termination of this Contract, DOE may require the Contractor to take all necessary steps to transfer on an allowable cost basis some or all environmental permits held by the Contractor. DOE will assume responsibility for such permits, with the approval of the regulating agency, and the Contractor shall be relieved of all liability and responsibility to the extent that such liability and responsibility results from the acts or omissions of a successor Contractor, DOE, or their agents, representatives, or assigns. The Contractor shall remain liable for all unresolved costs, claims, demands, fines and penalties, including reasonable legal costs, arising prior to the date such permits are transferred to another party. The Contractor shall not be liable for any such claims occurring after formal transfer unless said claims result from the Contractor's action or inaction that occurred prior to transfer.
- (j) <u>Miscellaneous</u>. The Contractor shall accept assignment or transfer of permits pertaining to matters under this Contract currently held by DOE and its existing Contractor. The Contractor may submit for DOE's consideration, requests for alternate review, comment, or signature schedules for environmental permit applications or other regulatory materials covered by this Clause. Any such schedule revision shall be effective only upon written approval from the Contracting Officer.

## H.21 SELF-PERFORMED WORK

(a) Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Contracting Officer, the percentage of work which may be self-performed by the large business(es) of the Contractor team arrangement (as described in *FAR 9.6, Contracting Team Arrangements*), shall be limited collectively to not more than 60 percent (%) of the *Total Contract Price*. This limitation does not apply to any small business member of the Contractor team

arrangement. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the Contracting Officer, work to subcontractors outside of the Contractor team arrangement shall be performed through competitive procurements with an emphasis on fixed-price subcontracts.

- (b) At least 25% of the *Total Contract Price* shall be performed by small business. Small business members of the Contractor team arrangement, and subcontractors selected after Contract award, count toward fulfillment of this requirement and other small business goals in this Contract.
- (c) Reporting requirements to confirm compliance with these thresholds and limitations are described in Section C, *Statement of Work*.

# H.22 EMERGENCY CLAUSE

- (a) The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) Richland Operations Office (DOE-RL) Manager and/or the DOE Office of River Protection (DOE-ORP) Manager or designee shall have sole discretion to determine when an emergency situation exists at the Hanford Site. In the event that either the DOE-RL or DOE-ORP Manager or designee determines such an emergency exists, the applicable DOE Manager or designee will have the authority to direct any and all activities of the Contractor and subcontractors necessary to resolve the emergency situation. The applicable DOE Manager or designee may direct the activities of the Contractor and subcontractors throughout the duration of the emergency.
- (b) During declared security events, DOE-RL may assume direct command and control of the Hanford Patrol. The Chief of the Hanford Patrol shall report directly to the DOE-RL Director of Security and Emergency Services (SES) once DOE-RL has assumed command.
- (c) The Contractor shall include this Clause in all subcontracts at any tier for work performed at the Hanford Site.

## H.23 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

- (a) The Contractor shall operate and maintain a financial management system that:
  - Conforms with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, Federal Financial Accounting Standards, Cost Accounting Standards, and U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) requirements;
  - (2) Provides accurate, reliable, and auditable financial and statistical data on a timely basis;
  - (3) Ensures accountability for all assets;
  - (4) Supports financial planning and budget formulation, validation, execution, and the recasting or changing of DOE funding or task codes such as budget and reporting classification (BRC) numbers, program task numbers, and local projects/tasks;

- (5) Restricts the movement of funds between project baseline summaries (PBSs) consistent with Congressional appropriation language;
- (6) Notifies DOE as soon as possible when potential reprogramming actions are required (e.g., movement of funds between PBSs);
- (7) Integrates and reports the financial information for subcontractors; and
- (8) Provides all other necessary financial reports, which shall include accumulating and reporting indirect and support costs by function. The Contractor may be requested, periodically, to provide detail cost element information at the institutional level using standard definitions and applications.
- (b) The Contractor shall provide monthly electronic files data supporting payments cleared, financing arrangement draw downs, and cost accrual and accrual reversal records to the Contracting Officer. Within the electronic submission, the Contractor shall provide data elements required to:
  - (1) Determine that all costs drawn down by the Contractor were necessary and reasonable per the terms and conditions of the Contract. This includes, but is not limited to: invoice number, billing period, work breakdown structure number, purchase order number and line item, quantity/hours, description of goods or services provided, cost type, cost categories, unit price, amount, and adders.
  - (2) Properly record all Contract costs and property in the DOE accounting system (Standard Accounting and Reporting System [STARS]). This includes, but is not limited to: reporting entity, financial plan, local organization, fund-code, control program number (i.e., budget and reporting numbers), program task number, PBS numbers, the fiscal year the funds were provided, the project/task number, object class, sub-object classes, other party identifiers, and budget reference numbers for plant and equipment line item number (if applicable).

Upon request, the Contractor shall also provide written documentation to support the electronic invoices to the Contracting Officer or his/her designee.

(c) The Contractor shall submit a plan for Contracting Officer approval of any substantive change to the financial management system or subsystems at least 60 days in advance of implementation. This plan must identify the cost and schedule for changing from the existing financial systems, and provide a comparison of the capabilities of the new system(s) to the existing system(s). Any new system modifications are subject to review and audit.

- (d) The Contractor shall provide reports at DOE direction. Some example or such reports are:
  - (1) Annual Estimated Property Valuation Report;
  - (2) Monthly Contract Funds Status Report;
  - (3) Monthly Depreciation Changes;
  - (4) Quarterly Erroneous Payment Report;
  - (5) Monthly Standard Accounting and Reporting System;
  - (6) Year-End Requirements and FY20XX Planning Requirements;
  - (7) Semi-Annual Travel Target Report; or
  - (8) Quarterly International Transactions Report.

## H.24 PAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

- (a) <u>Payment of Provisional and Incremental Fee</u>. Provisional and Incremental Fee are payable following the Government's determination of Available Fee in accordance with the Section B Clause entitled, Fee Structure. Provisional Fee and earned Incremental Fee shall be made by direct payment or withdrawn from funds advanced or available under this Contract, as determined by the Contracting Officer, in accordance with the Section B Clause entitled, Fee Determination and Payment. The Contracting Officer may offset against any such fee payment the amounts owed to the Government by the Contractor, including any amounts owed for disallowed costs under this Contract. No Provisional or Incremental Fee may be withdrawn against the payments cleared financing arrangement without the prior written approval of the Contracting Officer.
- (b) Payments on Account of Allowable Costs. The Contracting Officer and the Contractor shall agree as to the extent to which payment for allowable costs or payments for other items specifically approved in writing by the Contracting Officer (for example, negotiated fixed amounts) shall be made from advances of Government funds. When pension contributions are paid by the Contractor to the retirement fund less frequently than quarterly, accrued costs therefore shall be excluded from costs for payment purposes until such costs are paid. If pension contributions are paid on a quarterly or more frequent basis, accrual therefore may be included in costs for payment purposes, provided that they are paid to the fund within 30 days after the close of the period covered. If payments are not made to the fund within such 30-day period, pension contribution costs shall be excluded from cost for payment purposes until be excluded from cost for payments are not made.
- (c) <u>Special Financial Institution Account Use</u>. All advances of Government funds shall be withdrawn pursuant to a payments cleared financing arrangement prescribed by DOE in favor of the financial institution or, at the option of the Government, shall be made by direct payment or other payment mechanism to the contractor, and shall be deposited only in the special financial institution account referred to in the Special Financial Institution Account Agreement, which is incorporated into this Contract. No part of the funds in the Special Financial Institution Account shall be commingled with any funds of the Contractor or used for a purpose other than that of making payments for costs allowable and, if applicable, fees earned under this Contract, negotiated fixed amounts, or payments for other items specifically approved in writing by the Contracting Officer. If the Contracting Officer determines that the balance of such Special Financial Institution Account exceeds the Contractor's current needs, the Contractor shall promptly make such disposition of the excess as the Contracting Officer may direct.

- (d) <u>Title to Funds Advanced</u>. Title to the unexpended balance of any funds advanced and of any Special Financial Institution Account established pursuant to this Clause shall remain in the Government and be superior to any claim or lien of the financial institution of deposit or others. It is understood that an advance to the Contractor hereunder is not a loan to the Contractor, and will not require the payment of interest by the Contractor, and that the Contractor acquires no right, title or interest in or to such advance other than the right to make expenditures therefrom, as provided in this Clause.
- (e) <u>Financial Settlement.</u> The Government shall promptly pay to the Contractor the unpaid balance of allowable costs (or other items specifically approved in writing by the Contracting Officer) and fee upon termination of the work, expiration of the term of the Contract, or completion of the work and its acceptance by the Government after:
  - (1) Compliance by the Contractor with DOE patent clearance requirements, and
  - (2) The furnishing by the Contractor of:
    - An assignment of the Contractor's rights to any refunds, rebates, allowances, accounts receivable, collections accruing to the Contractor in connection with the work under this Contract, or other credits applicable to allowable costs under the Contract;
    - (ii) A closing financial statement;
    - (iii) The accounting for Government-owned property required by the Section I Clause entitled, FAR 52.245-5, Government Property (Cost-Reimbursement, Time-and-Material, or Labor-Hour Contracts); and
    - (iv) A release discharging the Government, its officers, agents, and employees from all liabilities, obligations, and claims arising out of or under this contract subject only to the following exceptions:
      - (A) Specified claims in stated amounts or in estimated amounts where the amounts are not susceptible to exact statement by the Contractor;
      - (B) Claims, together with reasonable expenses incidental thereto, based upon liabilities of the Contractor to third parties arising out of the performance of this Contract; provided that such claims are not known to the Contractor on the date of the execution of the release; and provided further that the Contractor gives notice of such claims in writing to the contracting officer promptly, but not more than one (1) year after the Contractor's right of action first accrues. In addition, the Contractor shall provide prompt notice to the Contracting Officer of all potential claims under this Clause, whether in litigation or not (see also Section I Clause entitled, DEAR 952.231-71, Insurance – Litigation and Claims);

- (C) Claims for reimbursement of costs (other than expenses of the Contractor by reason of any indemnification of the Government against patent liability), including reasonable expenses incidental thereto, incurred by the Contractor under the provisions of this contract relating to patents; and
- (D) Claims recognizable under the Section I Clause entitled, DEAR 952.250-70, Nuclear Hazards Indemnity Agreement.
- (3) In arriving at the amount due the Contractor under this Clause, there shall be deducted,
  - (i) Any claim which the Government may have against the Contractor in connection with this Contract, and
  - (ii) Deductions due under the terms of this Contract and not otherwise recovered by or credited to the Government. The unliquidated balance of the Special Financial Institution Account may be applied to the amount due and any balance shall be returned to the Government forthwith.
- (f) <u>Claims</u>. Claims for credit against funds advanced for payment shall be accompanied by such supporting documents and justification as the Contracting Officer shall prescribe.
- (g) <u>Discounts.</u> The Contractor shall take and afford the Government the advantage of all known and available cash and trade discounts, rebates, allowances, credits, salvage, and commissions unless the Contracting Officer finds that action is not in the best interest of the Government.
- (h) <u>Collections</u>. All collections accruing to the Contractor in connection with the work under this Contract, except for the Contractor's fee and royalties or other income accruing to the Contractor from technology transfer activities in accordance with this Contract, shall be Government property and shall be processed and accounted for in accordance with applicable requirements imposed by the Contracting Officer pursuant to Section I Clause entitled, *DEAR 970.5204-2, Laws, Regulations, and DOE Directives* and, to the extent consistent with those requirements, shall be deposited in the Special Financial Institution Account or otherwise made available for payment of allowable costs under this contract, unless otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer.
- (i) <u>Direct Payment of Charges</u>. The Government reserves the right, upon ten (10) days of written notice from the Contracting Officer to the Contractor, to pay directly to the persons concerned, all amounts due which otherwise would be allowable under this Contract. Any payment so made shall discharge the Government of all liability to the Contractor.
- (j) <u>Determining Allowable Costs</u>. The Contracting Officer shall determine allowable costs in accordance with the Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 31.2 and the Department of Energy Acquisition Regulation Part 931, *Contract Cost Principles and Procedures* in effect on the date of this Contract and other provisions of this Contract.
- (k) <u>Certification and Penalties</u>. The Contractor shall prepare and submit a "Final Indirect Rate Proposal" in accordance with Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.216-7, Allowable*

Cost and Payment/DEAR 952.216-7, Allowable Cost and Payment; Alternate II, for the total of net expenditures incurred for the period covered by the Cost Statement. It is anticipated that this will be an annual submission unless otherwise agreed to by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall certify the Cost Statement subject to the penalty provisions for unallowable costs as stated in sections 306(b) and (i) of the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949 (41 U.S.C. 256), as amended.

# H.25 ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ADR)

- (a) The U. S. Department of Energy (DOE) and the Contractor both recognize that methods for fair and efficient resolution of significant disputes are essential to the successful and timely achievement of critical milestones and completion of all Contract requirements. Accordingly, the parties agree to jointly select a "standing neutral." The standing neutral will be available to help resolve disputes as they arise. Such standing neutral can be an individual, a board comprised of three independent experts, or a company with specific expertise in the Contract area. If a standing neutral cannot be agreed upon, the DOE Office of Dispute Resolution will make a selection. Specific joint ADR processes shall be developed.
- (b) The parties agree the following provision may be invoked for significant disputes upon mutual agreement of the DOE and the Contractor:
  - (1) DOE and the Contractor shall use their best efforts to informally resolve any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement by consulting and negotiating with each other in good faith, recognizing their mutual interests, and attempting to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory to both parties. If any agreement cannot be reached through informal negotiations within 30 days after the start of negotiations, then such disagreement shall be referred to the standing neutral, pursuant to the jointly-developed ADR procedures.
  - (2) The standing neutral will not render a decision, but will assist the parties in reaching a mutually satisfactory agreement. In the event the parties are unable after 30 days to reach such an agreement, either party may request, and the standing neutral will render, a non-binding advisory opinion. Such opinion shall not be admissible in evidence in any subsequent proceedings.
  - (3) If one party to this Contract requests the use of the process set forth in Paragraphs b(1) and b(2) of this Clause and the other party disagrees, the party disagreeing must express its position in writing to the other party. On any such occasion, if the party requesting the above process wishes to file a claim under the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.233-1, Disputes*, it must do so within 30 days of receipt of the written position from the other party.

## H.26 LITIGATION SUPPORT

As required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall provide support to the Government on regulatory matters, third-party claims, and threatened or actual litigation. Support includes, but is not necessarily limited to: case preparation, document retrieval, review and reproduction, witness preparation, expert witness testimony, and assistance with discovery or other information requests responsive to any legal proceeding.

## H.27 ASSIGNMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF SUBCONTRACTS

- (a) <u>Assignment of Subcontracts.</u> The Government reserves the right to direct the Contractor to assign to the Government or another Contractor any subcontract awarded under this Contract, including lower-tier subcontracts. This Clause is required as a flow-down Clause in all subcontracts.
- (b) <u>Assignment of DOE Prime Contracts.</u> During the period of performance of this Contract it may become necessary for the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) to transfer and assign (and Contractor agrees to accept) existing or future DOE prime contracts supporting site work to this Contract. The transfer of these prime contracts will be for administration purposes and in effect the transferred contracts will become subcontracts to this Contract. Any recommendations and/or suggestions on individual transfers shall be submitted in writing to the Contracting Officer prior to the transfer or assignment.
- (c) <u>Administration of Subcontracts.</u> The administration of all subcontracts entered into and/or managed by the Contractor, including responsibility for payment hereunder, shall remain with the Contractor unless assigned at the direction of the DOE.
- (d) <u>Transfer of Subcontracts.</u> The Contractor agrees to accept transfer of existing subcontracts as determined necessary by DOE for continuity of operations. The Contractor shall attempt to negotiate changes to the assigned subcontracts incorporating mandatory flow-down provisions at no cost. If the subcontractor refuses to accept the changes or requests price adjustments, the Contractor will notify the Contracting Officer in writing.

# H.28 DISPOSITION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY – FAILURE TO COMPLETE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

The following provisions shall apply in the event the Contractor does not complete Contract performance for any reason:

(a) Regarding technical data and other intellectual property, the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) may take possession of all technical data, including limited rights data and data obtained from subcontractors, licensors, and licensees, necessary to complete the project, as well as the designs, operation manuals, flowcharts, software, information, etc., necessary for performance of the work, in conformance with the purpose of this Contract. Proprietary data will be protected in accordance with the limited rights data provisions of the Section I Clause entitled *DEAR 970.5227-1 Rights in Data-Facilities*.

The Contractor shall ensure that its subcontractors and licensors make similar rights available to DOE and its contractors.

- (b) The Contractor agrees to and does hereby grant to the Government an irrevocable, non-exclusive, paid-up license in and to any inventions or discoveries regardless of when conceived or actually reduced to practice by the Contractor, and any other intellectual property, including technical data, which are owned or controlled by the Contractor, at any time through completion of this Contract and which are incorporated or embodied in the construction of the facilities or which are utilized in the operation or remediation of the facilities or which cover articles, materials or products manufactured at a facility: (1) to practice or to have practiced by or for the Government at the facility; and (2) to transfer such license with the transfer of that facility. The acceptance or exercise by the Government at anytime from contesting the enforceability, validity or scope of, or title to, any rights or patents or other intellectual property herein licensed.
- (c) In addition, the Contractor will take all necessary steps to assign permits, authorizations, leases, and any licenses in any third party intellectual property for operations, remediation and closure of the facilities to DOE or such other third party as DOE may designate.

# H.29 PRIVACY ACT SYSTEMS OF RECORDS

(a) The Contractor shall design, develop, or adopt the following systems of records on individuals to accomplish an agency function pursuant to the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.224-2, Privacy Act.* 

System No.	Title
DOE-5	Personnel Records of Former Contractor Employees
DOE-11	Emergency Locator Records
DOE-13	Payroll & Locator Records
DOE-14	Report of Compensation
DOE-15	Payroll & Pay-Related Data for Employees of Terminated Contractors
DOE-23	Richland Property System
DOE-28	General Training Records
DOE-31	Firearms Qualifications Requirements
DOE-32	Government Motor Vehicle Operator Records
DOE-33	Personnel Medical Records
DOE-35	Personnel Radiation Exposure Records
DOE-40	Contractor Employees Insurance Claims
DOE-43	Personnel Security File
DOE-47	Security Investigations
DOE-51	Employee and Visitor Access Control Records
DOE-53	Access Authorization for ADP Equipment
DOE-58	General Correspondence Files

(b) The above list shall be revised by mutual agreement between the Contractor and the Contracting Officer as necessary to keep it current. A formal modification to the Contract is not required to incorporate these revisions; but the revisions become effective upon mutual agreement of the parties. The mutually agreed upon revisions shall have the same effect as if actually listed above for the purpose of satisfying the listing requirement contained in paragraph (a)(1) of the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.224-2, Privacy Act.* The revisions will be formally incorporated per the next annual Contract update modification, unless added sooner by the Contracting Officer.

## H.30 RESPONSIBLE CORPORATE OFFICIAL

The Contractor has provided a Guarantee of performance from its parent company in the form set forth in Section J Attachment entitled, *Performance Guarantee Agreement*. If the Contractor is a joint venture, newly-formed Limited Liability Company (LLC), or other similar entity where more than one company is involved in a business relationship created for the purpose of this procurement, the parent companies of all the entities forming the new entity shall all provide Guarantees, which Guarantees shall provide for joint and severable liability for the performance of the Contractor. DOE may contact, as necessary, the single responsible corporate official identified below, who is at an organizational level above the Contractor and who is accountable for the performance of the Contractor.

Name: Mr. Frank Armijo Position: Vice President, Energy Solutions Company/Organization: Lockheed Martin IS&GS - Civil Address: 9231 Corporate Boulevard, Rockville, MD 20850 Phone: 301-519-5474 Facsimile: 301-640-2045 Email: frank.armijo@Imco.com

The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing within 30 days of any change to the Responsible Corporate Official.

# H.31 MENTOR-PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM

- (a) Both the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) and the Small Business Administration (SBA) have established Mentor Protégé Programs to encourage Federal prime Contractors to assist small businesses, firms certified under Section 8(a) of the Small Business Act by the SBA, other small disadvantaged businesses, women-owned small businesses, historically black colleges and universities and minority Institutions, other minority institutions of higher learning, and small business concerns owned and controlled by service disabled veterans in enhancing its business abilities. Within 90 days of Transition start and continuing throughout the Contract period of performance, the Contractor shall mentor at least one active Protégé company through the DOE and/or SBA Mentor-Protégé Programs. Mentor and Protégé firms will develop and submit "lessons learned" evaluations to DOE at the conclusion of the Contract.
- (b) DOE Mentor-Protégé Agreements shall be in accordance with DEAR Subpart 919.70, The Department of Energy Mentor-Protégé Program.
- (c) SBA Mentor-Protégé Agreements shall be in accordance with applicable SBA regulations.

## H.32 LOBBYING RESTRICTION (ENERGY AND WATER ACT 2006)

The Contractor agrees that none of the funds obligated on this award shall be expended, directly or indirectly, to influence Congressional action on any legislation or appropriation matters pending before Congress, other than communication to Members of Congress as described in United States Code Title 18 Part 1913, *Lobbying with Appropriated Moneys*. This restriction is in addition to those prescribed elsewhere in statute and regulation.

## H.33 COUNTERINTELLIGENCE (CI) SITE SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to Executive Order 12333, *United States Intelligence Activities* and DOE procedures for intelligence activities, it is DOE policy to protect programs, resources, facilities, and personnel from intelligence collection by or on behalf of international terrorists, foreign powers, or entities and related threats through implementation of an effective, efficient Counterintelligence (CI) Program. DOE Order 475.1, *Counterintelligence Program*, reflects the current CI Program scope and requirements. These requirements are set forth locally in the Site CI Support Plan (SCSP). The local CI Program is managed and administered by the DOE Office of Intelligence and Counterintelligence, Directorate of Counterintelligence, Richland Regional Office (RLR-OCI) with the assistance of DOE organizations and contractors as identified in the SCSP. The Contractor agrees to fulfill the requirements of the SCSP.

## H.34 SEPARATE CORPORATE ENTITY

The prime contractor under this Contract shall be a separate corporate entity established solely to perform Contract activities. The separate corporate entity may be a partnership or joint venture as described in FAR Subpart 9.601(1), *Contractor Team Arrangements, Definition.* Requirements for access to Key Personnel under this separate corporate entity are described in the Section H Clauses entitled, *Key Personnel* and *Safety and Security Key Personnel.* 

## H.35 PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT

The Contractor or the Contractor's parent organization(s) has (have) provided a Performance *Guarantee Agreement* in a manner and form acceptable to the Contracting Officer assuring the performance, duties, and responsibilities of the Contractor, including repayment of unearned provisional fee, will be satisfactorily fulfilled. The *Performance Guarantee Agreement dated May 9, 2008,* is incorporated herein by reference and included as Contract Section J Attachment, entitled, *Performance Guarantee Agreement.* 

#### H.36 WITHDRAWAL OF WORK

- (a) The Government may, at its option and during the performance of this Contract unilaterally have any of the work contemplated by Section C, *Statement of Work*, of this Contract performed by either another Contractor or to have the work performed by Government employees.
- (b) Work may be withdrawn:
  - (1) In order for the Government to conduct pilot programs;
  - (2) If the Contractor's estimated cost of the work is considered unreasonable;
  - (3) For less than satisfactory performance by the Contractor; or
  - (4) For any other reason deemed by the Contracting Officer to be in the best interests of the Government.
- (c) If the withdrawn work has been authorized under the Performance Measurement Baseline for the current year, the work shall be terminated in accordance with the procedures in the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.249-6, Termination (Cost-Reimbursement)*.
- (d) If any work is withdrawn by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor agrees to fully cooperate with the new performing entity and to provide whatever support is required.

## H.37 USE OF DOE FACILITIES

The Contractor may conduct programs of local community assistance to mitigate adverse impacts of closure or reconfiguration of U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) facilities. Such programs may provide for the lease or transfer of DOE property at less than fair market value in accordance with the *Hall Amendment* (Public Law 103-160, Sections 3154 and 3155). The Contracting Officer must approve, in writing, prior to any lease or transfer of DOE property under this program. Any lease or transfer of property under this program must also be approved and executed (issued) by the DOE Realty or Personal Property Officer, as appropriate.

#### H.38 INFORMATION

- (a) <u>Management of Information Resources.</u> The Contractor shall design and implement Information Resources Management (IRM) capabilities for the Hanford Site systems identified in the Section C, *Statement of Work* in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-130, *Management of Federal Information Resources*.
- (b) <u>Release of Information.</u> The Contractor shall provide timely, accurate, and complete responses to information requested by DOE to comply with *Freedom of Information Act* and *Privacy Act* requirements.
- (c) <u>Unclassified, Controlled, Nuclear Information (UCNI)</u>. Documents originated by the Contractor or furnished by the Government to the Contractor, in connection with this Contract, may contain Unclassified, Controlled, Nuclear Information as determined pursuant to Section 148 of the *Atomic Energy Act of 1954*, as amended. The Contractor shall be responsible for protecting such information from unauthorized dissemination in accordance with DOE regulations and directives and Section I Clauses entitled, *DEAR 952.204-2, Security Requirements* and *DEAR 952.204-70, Classification/Declassification.*
- (d) <u>Confidentiality of Information</u>. To the extent that the work under this Contract requires that the Contractor be given access to confidential or proprietary business, technical, or financial information belonging to the Government or other companies, the Contractor shall, after receipt thereof, treat such information as confidential and agrees not to appropriate such information to its own use or to disclose such information to third parties unless specifically authorized by the Contracting Officer in writing. The foregoing obligations, however, shall not apply to:
  - (1) Information which, at the time of receipt by the Contractor, is in the public domain;
  - (2) Information which is published after receipt thereof by the Contractor or otherwise becomes part of the public domain through no fault of the Contractor;
  - (3) Information which the Contractor can demonstrate was in its possession at the time of receipt thereof and was not acquired directly or indirectly from the Government or other companies;

(4) Information which the Contractor can demonstrate was received by it from a third party that did not require the Contractor to hold it in confidence.

The Contractor shall obtain the written agreement, in a form satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, of each employee permitted access to such information, whereby the employee agrees that he/she will not discuss, divulge or disclose any such information or data to any person or entity except those persons within the Contractor's organization directly concerned with the performance of the Contract.

The Contractor agrees, if requested by the Government, to sign an agreement identical, in all material respects, to the provisions of this subparagraph (d), with each company supplying information to the Contractor under this Contract, and to supply a copy of such agreement to the Contracting Officer. Upon request from the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall supply the Government with reports itemizing information received as confidential or proprietary and setting forth the company or companies from which the Contractor received such information.

The Contractor agrees that upon request by DOE, it will execute a DOE-approved agreement with any party whose facilities or proprietary data it is given access to or is furnished, restricting use and disclosure of the data or the information obtained from the facilities. Upon request by DOE, such an agreement shall also be signed by Contractor personnel.

(e) The Government reserves the right to require the Contractor to include this Clause or a modified version of this Clause in any subcontract as directed in writing by the Contracting Officer.

## H.39 PARENT ORGANIZATION SUPPORT

(a) For on-site work, U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) fee generally provides adequate compensation for parent organization expenses incurred in the general management of this Contract. The general construct of this Contract results in minimal parent organization investment (in terms of its own resources, such as labor, material, overhead, etc.) in the Contract work. The Contract is largely financed by DOE advance payments, and DOE provides government-owned facilities, property, and other needed resources.

Accordingly, allocations of parent organization expenses are unallowable for the prime contractor, major subcontractors, and/or teaming partners, unless authorized by the Contracting Officer in accordance with this Clause.

- (b) The Contractor may propose, or DOE may require, parent organization support to:
  - (1) Monitor safety and performance in the execution of Contract requirements;
  - (2) Ensure achievement of Contract environmental clean-up and closure commitments;
  - (3) Sustain excellence of Contract Key Personnel;

- (4) Ensure effective internal processes and controls for disciplined Contract execution;
- (5) Assess Contract performance and apply parent organization problem-solving resources on problem areas; and
- (6) Provide other parent organization capabilities to facilitate Contract performance.
- (c) The Contracting Officer may, at its unilateral discretion, authorize parent organization support, and the corresponding indirect or direct costs, if a direct-benefiting relationship to DOE is demonstrated. All parent organization support shall be authorized in advance by the Contracting Officer.
- (d) If parent organization support is proposed by the Contractor or required by DOE, the Contractor shall submit for DOE review and approval, an annual *Parent Organization Support Plan* (POSP). The Contractor shall submit its initial POSP 60 days prior to: (1) the end of the Contract *Transition Period*; or (2) the commencement date of parent organization support proposed by the Contractor or required by the Government. Any subsequent POSP shall be submitted 90 days prior to the start of each year of Contract performance.

## H.40 RESERVED

# H.41 ELECTRONIC SUBCONTRACTING REPORTING SYSTEM (eSRS)

The requirement for the submittal of paper versions of the Standard Form (SF) 294, *Subcontracting Reports for Individual Contracts*, and SF 295, *Summary Subcontract Reports*, as provided in Section I Clause entitled, FAR 52.219-9, *Small Business Subcontracting Plan* --*Alternate II* is hereby deleted and is replaced with the electronic submittal of data under the Electronic Subcontract Reporting System (eSRS).

The Offeror's Subcontracting Plan shall include assurances that the Offeror will:

- (a) Submit the Individual Subcontracting Reports and Summary Subcontracting Reports under the eSRS, and
- (b) Ensure that its subcontractors agree to submit Individual Subcontracting Reports and Summary Subcontracting Reports at all tiers, in eSRS.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall provide such information that will allow applicable lower tier subcontractors to fully comply with the statutory requirements of FAR 19.702, *The Small Business Subcontracting Program, Statutory Requirements*.

# H.42 HANFORD SITE RECREATION POLICY

The Contractor shall comply with the Hanford Site Recreation Policy. The Contractor shall flowdown applicable requirements of this Clause to any subcontractors.

#### H.43 ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST BETWEEN HANFORD SITE CONTRACTS

Performance of the Mission Support Contract (MSC) will be limited throughout the Contract period of performance to a Contractor that is not concurrently performing the River Corridor Closure Contract (RCCC), Waste Treatment and Immobilization Plant (WTP) contract, Plateau Remediation Contract (PRC), and Tank Operations Contract (TOC).

This Contract limitation applies to any teaming member(s) as described in FAR Subpart 9.6, *Contractor Team Arrangements* pre-selected subcontractor(s), parent companies or affiliates of the teaming member(s), or pre-selected contractor(s), concurrently performing the RCCC, WTP contract, PRC, or TOC.

This Contract requirement may be waived at the unilateral discretion of an individual with delegated authority, but at no lower level than the Head of Contracting Activity, as described in FAR Subpart 9.5, *Organizational and Consultant Conflicts of Interest.* 

Upon submission of a conflict of interest mitigation plan to the Contracting Officer, the Contracting Officer shall consider the extent to which the conflict has been sufficiently mitigated and issue appropriate direction.

#### H.44 HANFORD SITE SERVICES AND INTERFACE REQUIREMENTS MATRIX

(a) <u>Definition</u>

The Contractor may provide services to or receive services from other Hanford Site U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) prime contractors in performance of the scope of this Contract. The purpose of the Section J Attachment entitled, *Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements* Matrix (Matrix) is to identify the service provider and the associated, general interface obligations. The Matrix is not an all-inclusive listing of services that may be required or provided, however all services provided to another contractor shall fall within the scope of the provider's contract.

#### (b) <u>Categories of Services</u>

Services are identified in each Contract (see Section J Attachment entitled, *Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix*) as either "Mandatory," or "Optional" for use by Hanford Site customers, including DOE and/or Site contractors and their subcontractors.

- (1) "Mandatory" services are provided by the identified service provider to all users at the start of contract performance. If, for any reason, a service provider of a mandatory service cannot provide the required service to meet the requesting contractors' needs, the requesting contractor must obtain Contracting Officer approval, prior to obtaining the services from any other source.
- (2) "Optional" services are services that have been historically discretionary and are considered non-compulsory at the time of Contract award.

#### (c) <u>Interfaces</u>

All "Information" interfaces (see Section J Attachment entitled, *Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix*) are Mandatory.

#### (d) Requirement to Establish Controls

As set forth in the Section C, *Statement of Work* section entitled, *Interface Management*, the Mission Support Contractor (MSC) shall develop, in conjunction with the Tank Operations Contractor (TOC) and Plateau Remediation Contractor (PRC), the *Hanford Site Interface Management Plan*. As part of this Plan, the Contractors shall include controlling agreements (e.g., Memoranda of Agreement) establishing effective control of interfaces and terms for the provision of services. At a minimum, controlling agreements shall define:

- (1) The interface and/or the services work request elements, and service levels (quantity and delivery rates);
- (2) If applicable, the method and timing for charging costs associated with the service and the payment methods; and target performance measures for meeting required service levels;
- (3) Decision process and a rigorous dispute resolution process; and
- (4) Clear delineation of roles, responsibilities, accountabilities, and authorities.

#### (e) <u>Controls</u>

When services between prime contractors are offered and accepted, DOE does not expect the requesting prime contractor to review or otherwise validate top-level crosscutting quality control, health, safety and/or environmental protection requirements mandated by the performing contractor's contract. The requesting prime contractor may assume that such contract requirements, e.g., Integrated Safety Management System, Quality Program/Plan are acceptable to DOE. The performing contractor shall be expected by DOE and the requesting Contractor to provide products or services in a manner that is consistent with the requirements of the performing prime contractor's contract, including quality assurance, health and safety and environmental compliance requirements, and the task instructions provided by the requesting contractor.

(f) Right of Access

Hanford Site Contractors shall, with coordination and adequate preparation, allow service-providing Contractors access to facilities to perform the service.

#### (g) <u>Nuclear Safety</u>

The Contractor shall establish a protocol with each Hanford Site contractor identified in the Section J Attachment entitled, Hanford Site Service and Interface Requirements Matrix: this protocol shall establish the basis to perform MSC work scope within a nuclear facility, or perform work scope that affects the safety basis of a nuclear facility, that is operated by the Hanford Site contractor with responsibility for the nuclear facility. The protocol shall describe the general scope of work to be performed, flow down of nuclear safety requirements, and implementing processes/procedures for DOE approval prior to transition. The protocol shall be signed by the MSC and concurred in by the other affected contractor. Any new or future protocols or updates will be submitted to and approved by DOE. The protocol will be recognized as part of the ISMS Description. The Contractor shall comply with all facility safety authorization basis and nuclear safety requirements that are established by the Hanford Site contractor responsible for the nuclear facility. The Contractor shall flow down to each subcontractor (in accordance with the Section I Clause entitled, DEAR 970.5223-1, Integration of Environment, Safety and Health Into Work Planning and Execution), the protocol to comply with all facility safety authorization basis and nuclear safety requirements that are established by the contractor responsible for the nuclear facility.

#### (h) Updates to the Matrix

In cooperation with PRC and TOC, the MSC shall annually update the Matrix and provide it to DOE through the annual *Infrastructure and Services Alignment Plan* (ISAP) revision and Matrix update process. MSC shall solicit input from Hanford Site contractors/users for the ISAP, including projection of need for services and proposed performance metrics/controlling agreements for the service provider. Other Hanford Site contractors/users are included to inform MSC/PRC/TOC of their complete obligation. The Matrix updates shall be signed, showing concurrence, by MSC, PRC, and TOC.

If any Hanford Site contractor believes it is in DOE's best interest to change a "Mandatory" service to "Optional" so that it may be self-performed by the requestor or procured from a different source, the Contractor shall propose this change through the annual ISAP revision and Matrix update process. A written justification shall be provided showing how the change is in the best interest of the Government and include the impacts to users and the provider. If, at the unilateral discretion of the Contracting Officer, the decision is made to implement the proposed change, the change will not take affect until the Contractor receives Contracting Officer direction to implement the change. Contracting Officer rejection or delay of a proposed change shall not be the basis for a Request for Equitable Adjustment (REA) or subject to the Section I Clause entitled, *FAR 52.233-1, Disputes*.

#### (i) Payment of Services

Fee-for-Service providers shall provide to DOE and make available to the user an adequate basis for liquidation of the charge for usage-based, "Mandatory" services. Service rates will be developed based upon customer-projected usage.

#### (j) <u>Responsibility for Delivery of Service</u>

Contractors retain the responsibility to reach agreement on interfaces and for the appropriate delivery of services. The Government makes no guarantees or warranties regarding the delivery of services, and services between contractors shall not constitute government-furnished services or government-furnished information. The Government shall not be held responsible for the delivery or non-delivery of services between Hanford Site contractors. Contractors shall attempt to resolve any disputes regarding service interfaces and the provision of services among themselves. If contractors are unable to achieve a timely resolution of issues between themselves regarding interfaces or the appropriate delivery of services, contractors may seek direction from the Contracting Officer. To the extent contractors attempt to litigate disputes between themselves regarding interfaces or the appropriate delivery of services, all costs associated with such litigation shall be unallowable under this Contract.

## H.45 RESERVED

## H.46 CONTRACTOR INVESTMENT COMMITMENTS

The contractor agrees to invest \$11,000,000 over the pre-award phase and ten-year contract period of performance in the projects identified in the table (Figure 1-1) in this clause at no cost to DOE-RL. The time phasing of the investments is subject to the requirements of each project, and the cost shall be incurred as required to complete each project. DOE-RL recognizes that changes may occur during the course of the contract that may require the reallocation of funding among individual projects, but the Contractor shall incur the cost for these projects. The Contractor shall provide annual reports of activities and actual costs incurred against the planned expenditure for each project to the Contracting Officer.

Figure 1-1, which is incorporated into this contract, is the list of investment projects identified by the Contractor in its proposal dated July 16, 2007, and which have not been identified elsewhere in this contract as a contractual requirement. The Contractor is committed to meet the stated objectives as part of contract compliance, subject to the \$11M investment ceiling. The extent to which the Contractor is able to achieve success in the execution and completion of the investment projects shall be considered by DOE in any determination to exercise the Options provided for in Section B of this contract. DOE is authorized to off-set the value of any incomplete investment projects for which the Contractor does not spend its obligated amount from otherwise payable cost and fee in the event of non-delivery. If funds remain available during the term of the contract, the Contractor may identify and recommend additional investment projects. Selection of investment projects will be based on the potential benefits to the Hanford mission and priorities, and in consultation with DOE.

MSA Investment Commitments	Benefit	Estimated Timeframe	Estimated Value			
PRE-AWARD, JUMP START						
We conduct pre-award <i>Jump Start</i> activities to plan and develop key enablers and tools, finalize the Transition Plan, and prepare early draft plan deliverables.	Accelerated, seamless Transition and Contract Start at minimal-risk.	Pre-Award	\$1.0M			
MSC PROJECT LIFE CYLE INVESTMENTS						

MSA Investment Commitments	Benefit	Estimated Timeframe	Estimated Value
PRE-AWARD, JUMP START			
We implement <i>Voice Over Internet Protocol (VoIP)</i> combining telephone and network systems providing cost savings through the life of the contract.	DOE saves \$35 million dollars over the life of the contract, avoids capital costs, with improved performance and efficiency.	Base Period	\$2.0M
We deploy the <i>Mission Support Integration</i> <i>Center (MSIC)</i> , a modern, fully digital, decision support center for MSC planning, scheduling, and monitoring as well as support for quick reaction Portfolio Management activities where a separate facility is required.	Central <i>Integration Point</i> for DOE, MSC, and Site customers/stakeholders to facilitate planning and control of project activities and resolve issues real time. Provides modern systems and tools to optimize problem setup and DOE decision making.	Base Period	\$1.0M
We invest in <i>college internships</i> , <i>scholarships</i> , and building local <i>science and</i> <i>technology educational programs</i> with local K-12 and colleges.	Investment in the future workforce and economic diversification of the economy while providing valuable experience in related fields.	Base Period 1 <sup>st</sup> Option Period 2 <sup>nd</sup> Option Period	\$1.0M
We fund <i>HAMMER business development</i> resources to attract additional customer contracts to the facility	Reduces dependency on EM funding – HAMMER becomes self-sustaining.	Base Period 1 <sup>st</sup> Option Period 2 <sup>nd</sup> Option Period	\$0.6M
We implement and deploy a <i>Mission</i> <i>Optimization Center</i> during Transition.	Proving ground for re-engineering business processes, evaluating innovative ideas, building and pilot testing proof-of-concepts, and supporting training activities.	Base Period	\$0.5M
We offer <i>jobs for qualified displaced workers</i> with our parent companies.	Provides soft landing for displaced workers and promotes goodwill in the local communities.	Base Period	\$0.5M
We provide access to <i>parent company training</i> <i>programs</i> such as LM21 Operating Excellence and conduct Kaizen/Six Sigma (continuous improvement) events and training for Site contractors and DOE.	Staff Development provides additional opportunities for MSC operational efficiencies and offers MSA Best Practices for Site contractors and DOE; tangible benefits to the Site in productivity, cost savings, or cost avoidance.	Base Period 1 <sup>st</sup> Option Period 2 <sup>nd</sup> Option Period	\$0.5M
We deploy a single integrated state-of-the-art <i>Mission Service Desk</i> for centralized 24x7x365 support to Site contractors and DOE for customer calls and electronic requests.	Provides a single support desk for MSC services to improve response times, measure time to resolution, and track all services at a lower cost of operations.	Base Period	\$0.4M
We install <i>portable HAMMER classrooms</i> to support Site-wide <i>Mobile Training Teams</i> that provide training resources at Site contractor locations.	Extends HAMMER resources into the Site meeting training needs where and when required, lowers training costs, and promotes worker safety.	Base Period	\$0.2M
We modernize Emergency Operations Center technology.	Improve the technology of the EOC without capital or operating expenses to DOE.	Base Period	\$0.2M
We make WSI's Senior Fire Chief available to work on safety planning for SNM transport.	Subject Matter Expert available for 18 months to assist in reducing risk during SNM transport.	Base Period	\$0.1M
<b>DISCRETIONARY RESERVE</b> – to be defined by MSA and approved by LLC Members Committee over the life of the contract.	Allocated in collaboration between DOE and MSA to address new initiatives/technologies that improve efficiency/performance, and/or reduce cost.	Base Period 1 <sup>st</sup> Option Period 2nd Option Period	\$3.0M
	TOTAI	MSA INVESTMENT	\$11.0M

#### H.47 SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO WORK FUNDED UNDER AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009 (Feb 2009)

Preamble:

The ARRA terms and conditions in this contract will apply only to work performed with ARRA funds received from other site prime contractors through service agreements. All reporting requirements identified shall be reported through prime contractors, and not directly to DOE-RL.

Work performed under this contract will be funded, in whole or in part, with funds appropriated by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, (Recovery Act or Act). The Recovery Act's purposes are to stimulate the economy and to create and retain jobs. The Act gives preference to activities that can be started and completed expeditiously, including a goal of using at least 50 percent of the funds made available by it for activities that can be initiated not later than June 17, 2009.

Contractors should begin planning activities for their first tier subcontractors, including obtaining a DUNS number (or updating the existing DUNS record), and registering with the Central Contractor Registration (CCR).

Be advised that Recovery Act funds can be used in conjunction with other funding as necessary to complete projects, but tracking and reporting must be separate to meet the reporting requirements of the Recovery Act and related Guidance. For projects funded by sources other than the Recovery Act, Contractors should plan to keep separate records for Recovery Act funds and to ensure those records comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Government has not fully developed the implementing instructions of the Recovery Act, particularly concerning the how and where for the new reporting requirements. The Contractor will be provided these details as they become available. The Contractor must comply with all requirements of the Act. If the contractor believes there is any inconsistency between Recovery Act requirements and current contract requirements, the issues will be referred to the Contracting Officer for reconciliation.

Be advised that special provisions may apply to projects funded by the Act relating to:

- Reporting, tracking and segregation of incurred costs;
- Reporting on job creation and preservation;
- Publication of information on the Internet;
- Protecting whistleblowers; and
- Requiring prompt referral of evidence of a false claim to the Inspector General.

#### Definitions:

For purposes of this clause, "Covered Funds" means funds expended or obligated from appropriations under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5. Covered Funds will have special accounting codes and will be identified as Recovery Act funds in the contract and/or modification using Recovery Act funds. Covered Funds must be reimbursed by September 30, 2015.

Non-Federal employer means any employer with respect to Covered Funds – the contractor or

subcontractor, as the case may be, if the contractor or subcontractor is an employer; and any professional membership organization, certification of other professional body, any agent or licensee of the Federal government, or any person acting directly or indirectly in the interest of an employer receiving Covered Funds; or with respect to Covered Funds received by a State or local government, the State or local government receiving the funds and any contractor or subcontractor receiving the funds and any contractor or subcontractor of the State or local government; and does not mean any department, agency, or other entity of the federal government.

#### (a) Flow Down Provision

This clause must be included in every first-tier subcontract. The contractor shall also flow down requirements to any site service provider required to provide services to support Recovery Act work through appropriate controlling agreements, as described in clause H.44, *Hanford Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix*.

(b) Segregation and Payment of Costs

Contractor must segregate the obligations and expenditures related to funding under the Recovery Act. Financial and accounting systems should be revised as necessary to segregate, track and maintain these funds apart and separate from other revenue streams. No part of the funds from the Recovery Act shall be commingled with any other funds or used for a purpose other than that of making payments for costs allowable for Recovery Act projects. Where Recovery Act funds are authorized to be used in conjunction with other funding to complete projects, tracking and reporting must be separate from the original funding source to meet the reporting requirements of the Recovery Act and OMB Guidance.

(c) Prohibition on Use of Funds

None of the funds provided under this agreement derived from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, may be for any casino or other gambling establishment, aquarium, zoo, golf course, or swimming pool.

(d) Wage Rates

All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors on projects funded directly by or assisted in whole or in part by and through the Federal Government pursuant to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor in accordance with subchapter IV of chapter 31 of title 40, United States Code. With respect to the labor standards specified in this section, the Secretary of Labor shall have the authority and functions set forth in Reorganization Plan numbered 14 of 1950 (64 Stat. 1267, 5 U.S.C. App.) and section 3145 of title 40 United States Code. See http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/contracts/dbra.htm.

(e) Publication

Information about this agreement will be published on the Internet and linked to the website www.recovery.gov, maintained by the Accountability and Transparency Board (the Board). The Board may exclude posting contractual or other information on the

website on a case-by-case basis when necessary to protect national security or to protect information that is not subject to disclosure under sections 552 and 552a of title 5, United States Code.

(f) Registration requirements

Contractor shall ensure that all first-tier subcontractors, as required in accordance with the Section I clause entitled FAR 52.204-11, American Recovery and Reinvestment Act – Reporting Requirements (MAR 2009), have a DUNS number and are registered in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) no later than the date the first report is due under the clause.

(g) Utilization of Small Business

Contractor shall to the maximum extent practicable give a preference to small business in the award of subcontracts for projects funded by Recovery Act dollars.

## H.48 RESERVED

# H.49 EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

This Clause supplements the "DOE-RL Emergency Plan Implementing Procedure", DOE-0223, by clarifying the process for implementation of proposed changes listed in Section 3.20, Subsection 5.0 of this document. DOE-0223 is managed by the RL Security and Emergency Services organization. When updates to the Procedure need to be made, the Emergency Preparedness points of contact from each represented company are provided drafts for review and are required to consult with the appropriate contractor staff in their respective organization to determine impacts to contractual requirements (e.g., work scope, cost, schedule). If there are impacts, the contractor will immediately contact the RL contracting officer for direction."

# H.50 TRANSFORMATIONAL ENERGY ACTION MANAGEMENT (TEAM) INITIATIVE

In support of the goals of the Department of Energy's Transformational Energy Action Management (TEAM) initiative, and the goals and objectives contained in Executive Order 13423, Strengthening Federal Environmental, Energy, and Transportation Management, the Contractor shall provide full and open access to the maximum extent practicable to DOE contracted Energy Service Companies (ESCOs) under Energy Savings Performance Contracts (ESPCs), facilitate on-site assessments of opportunities to improve the Site's energy efficiency, water reduction and renewable energy improvements, and shall provide assistance in reviewing ESCO recommendations. The Contractor shall define requirements necessary to be placed in ESPCs and participate in the creation of ESPCs. The Contractor shall ensure ESCO personnel are granted access pursuant to contractual requirements; monitor ESCO activities to ensure that site safety and security requirements are adhered to; promptly provide information requested by ESCO personnel to assist them in developing viable recommendations; and, assist in the monitoring and execution of ESPC projects. When an ESCO is working in facilities under the control of the contractor, the ESCO shall work under the facility contractor's work control and safety program.

## H.51 SHIPMENT NOTIFICATION

- (a) The Contractor and /or Subcontractors shall notify Energy Northwest seven (7) days in advance (1) of any movement of "common" explosives over 1,800 pounds excluding small arms ammunitions or classified shipments within five (5) miles of Energy Northwest and/or, (2) of any railroad shipment from/to Hanford north of the rail spur to the Fast Flux Test Facility.
- (b) For EM radioactive material/waste shipments by motor carrier and/or rail, the additional security measures described below shall be implemented. Documentation that the security measures were performed shall be maintained with the shipping papers.
  - (1) Additional Security Measures to be Implemented for Motor Carriers transporting Radioactive Material/Waste Shipments:
    - (i) Verify and document that site security plans require drivers entering the faculty for loading/unloading of shipments to sign in at the security gate and be escorted to the loading/unloading location unless a security badge has been issued.
    - (ii) Verify and document the name of the drivers, who will be entering DOE facilities to pick up shipments to be used for commercial shipments, are on the list provided by the motor carrier.
    - (iii) Verify and document the motor carriers to be used have provided documentation that all drivers meet the personal security requirements addressed in the U.S. Department of Transportation's (DOT) Security Sensitive Visits.
    - (iv) Obtain copies of documentation from the carriers that all drivers are citizens of the United State
    - (v) Verify the drivers have a Commercial Driver's License, with proper hazardous materials endorsements, and attach a copy to the shipment documentation to be kept on file for each shipment.
    - (vi) Verify and document the carriers utilize satellite tracking and/or maintains cellular telephone contact with the driver, including the requirement that the driver must contact carrier dispatch at regular intervals.
    - (vii) Require security staff to perform and document per-loading equipment inspections to avoid explosive and other devices as detailed in Measure 18 of CRD Notice 473.9 (Supplemented Rev. 0), *Security Conditions*.

NOTE: DOE Notice, Measure 18. Implement screening procedures for other deliveries at designated inspection points to identify explosives and incendiary devices. Use K-9 teams for inspections, when available. Instruct site personnel to report suspicious packages to Security and refrain from handling them until cleared by appropriate authority.

- (iv) Provide the drivers a briefing and a copy of written instructions regarding en route shipment security measures to be taken. Ensure the drivers can read and understand the instructions provided and have the driver sign a copy of the instructions. Attach signed and dated copy of the instructions to the shipment documentation to be kept on file.
- (v) Request consignee notification of receipt of shipments.

- (2) Additional Security Measures to be Implemented for Rail Carriers transporting Radioactive Material/Waste Shipments
  - (i) Obtain a copy of the rail carrier's security plan. Ensure the plan identifies communications links, frequency of communication, and points of contact information for security-related emergencies.
  - (ii) Implement a mechanism to be notified by the carrier should cars/train encounter any unexpected occurrences en route. Ensure the rail carrier has access to the information.
  - (iii) Require security staff to perform and document pre-loading equipment inspections to avoid explosive and other as detailed in Measure 18 of CRD Notice 473.9 (Supplemented Rev. 0), *Security Conditions*.

NOTE: DOE Notice, Measure 18. Implement screening procedures for other deliveries at designated inspection points to identify explosives and incendiary devices. Use K-9 teams for inspections, when available. Instruct site personnel to report suspicious packages to Security and refrain from handling them until cleared by appropriate authority.

- (iv) Verify and document the rail carrier has a communication system (through central dispatch consignee notification of arrival cars/trains.
- (v) Request consignee notification of arrival of cars/trains.

# H.52 EM-SPECIFIC SUSTAINABILITY INTERIM CLAUSE TO IMPLEMENT EISA 2007 AND EXECUTIVE ORDER 13514

Contractor is responsible for the management and operation of the Department of Energy's facilities, fleets and conduct of mission operations at the Hanford Site. In accordance with the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 (EISA 2001) and Executive Order 13514 Federal leadership in Environmental, Energy, and Economic Performance (10/5/2009) the contractor shall:

- (a) Assist the Department through direct participation and other support in achieving the Department's scope 1, 2, and 3 greenhouse gas emission reduction goals and other goals and objectives contained in Executive Order 13514.
- (b) Report annually a comprehensive inventory of absolute greenhouse gas emissions, including specified scope 3 emissions, as directed by the Contracting Officer. Develop and implement internal policies to calculate and track greenhouse gas emissions following federal guidelines.
- (c) Implement the <u>Technical Guidance on Implementing the Stormwater Runoff</u> <u>Requirements for Federal Projects under Section 438 of the Energy Independence and</u> <u>Security Act</u> issued by the Environmental Protection Agency.
- (d) Use low-GHG-emitting vehicles, optimize number of vehicles in fleet and follow DOE fleet guidance as provided by the Contracting Officer.
- (e) Assist the Department in meeting the pollution prevention and waste diversion goals of E.O. 13514 through source reduction and, as supported by cost-benefit analysis,

diverting from disposal non-hazardous solid wastes and construction and demolition materials and debris.

- (f) Assist the department in meeting its high performance sustainable building design, construction, operation and management, maintenance, and deconstruction goals as provided in E.O. 13514.
  - Pursue cost-effective, innovative strategies, such as highly reflective and vegetated roofs, to minimize consumption of energy, water, and materials and to contribute to the efforts to bring facilities into compliance with the federal guiding principles for high performance buildings;
  - Manage existing building systems to reduce the consumption of energy, water, and materials, and identify alternatives to renovation that reduce existing assets' deferred maintenance costs;
  - Identify opportunities to consolidate and dispose of existing assets, optimize the performance of the Department's real-property portfolio, and reduce associated environmental impacts.
- (g) Assist the Department in ensuring that new federal buildings and federal buildings undergoing major renovations reduce their fossil fuel-generated energy consumption (baseline 2003) by 55% (2010), 65% (2015), 80% (2020, 90% (2025), and 100% (2030).
- (h) Ensure major replacements of installed equipment, renovation, or expansion of existing space employ the most energy efficient designs, systems, equipment, and controls that are life-cycle cost effective. And ensure such activities contribute to compliance with federal guiding principles for high performance buildings.
- (i) As directed by the contracting officer, designate a facility energy manager and complete energy and water evaluations every 4 years for each facility. Ensure that facility energy managers commission equipment and establish O&M plans for measuring, verifying, and reporting energy and water savings.
- (j) Assist the department in advancing sustainable acquisition for products and services as outlined in E.O. 13514.
  - 1) Promote electronics stewardship.
  - Establish and implement policies to enable power management, duplex printing, and other energy-efficient or environmentally preferable features on all eligible agency electronic products;
  - 3) Employ environmentally sounds practices with respect to the agency's disposition of all agency excess or surplus electronic products;
  - 4) Implement best management practices for energy-efficient management of servers and federal data centers;
- (k) Assist the Department to sustain environmental management by:
  - 1) Continuing implementation of formal environmental management systems at all appropriate organizational levels; and
  - 2) Ensuring these formal systems are appropriately implemented and maintained to achieve the performance necessary to meet the goals of E.O. 13514.

# H.53 NNSA/EM STRATEGIC SOURCING PARTNERSHIP

The contractor shall participate in the National Nuclear Security Administration (NNSA)/Environmental Management (EM) Strategic Sourcing Partnership. Under this

partnership, EM contractors shall work with the NNSA/EM Supply Chain Management Center (SCMC) to yield an enterprise-wide, synergistic strategic sourcing solution that leverages NNSA and EM purchasing power to gain pricing, processing, and reporting efficiencies to reduce costs overall for the Government.

## H.54 CONFERENCE RELATED ACTIVITIES AND SPENDING

The Contractor agrees that:

- a) The contractor shall ensure that contractor-sponsored conferences reflect the DOE/NNSA's commitment to fiscal responsibility, appropriate stewardship of taxpayer funds and support the mission of DOE/NNSA as well as other sponsors of work. In addition, the contractor will ensure conferences do not include any activities that create the appearance of taxpayer funds being used in a questionable manner.
- b) For the purposes of this clause, "conference" is defined in Attachment 2 to the Deputy Secretary's memorandum of August 17, 2015 entitled "Updated Guidance on Conference-Related Activities and Spending."
- c) Contractor-sponsored conferences include those events that meet the conference definition and either or both of the following:
  - 1) The contractor provides funding to plan, promote, or implement an event, except in instances where a contractor:
    - i) covers participation costs in a conference for specified individuals (e.g. students, retirees, speakers, etc.) in a total amount not to exceed \$10,000 (by individual contractor for a specific conference) or
    - ii) purchases goods or services from the conference planners (e.g., attendee registration fees, renting booth space).
  - 2) The contractor authorizes use of its official seal, or other seals/logos/ trademarks to promote a conference. Exceptions include non-M&O contractors who use their seal to promote a conference that is unrelated to their DOE contract(s) (e.g., if a DOE IT contractor were to host a general conference on cyber security).
- d) Attending a conference, giving a speech or serving as an honorary chairperson does not connote sponsorship.
- e) The contactor will provide information on conferences they plan to sponsor with expected costs exceeding \$100,000 to DOE-RL for input in the Department's Conference Management Tool, including:
  - 1) Conference title, description, and date
  - 2) Location and venue
  - 3) Description of any unusual expenses (e.g., promotional items)
  - 4) Description of contracting procedures used (e.g., competition for space/support)
  - 5) Costs for space, food/beverages, audio visual, travel/per diem, registration costs, recovered costs (e.g., through exhibit fees)
  - 6) Number of attendees
- f) The contractor will not expend funds on the proposed contractor-sponsored conferences with expenditures estimated to exceed \$100,000 until notified of approval by the contracting officer.

- g) For DOE-sponsored conferences, the contractor will not expend funds on the proposed conference until notified by the contracting officer.
  - DOE-sponsored conferences include events that meet the definition of a conference and where the Department provides funding to plan, promote, or implement the conference and/or authorizes use of the official DOE seal, or other seals/logos/ trademarks to promote a conference. Exceptions include instances where DOE:
    - i) covers participation costs in a conference for specified individuals (e.g. students, retirees, speakers, etc.) in a total amount not to exceed \$10,000 (by individual contractor for a specific conference) or
    - ii) purchases goods or services from the conference planners (e.g., attendee registration fees; renting booth space); or provide funding to the conference planners through Federal grants.
  - 2) Attending a conference, giving a speech, or serving as an honorary chairperson does not connote sponsorship.
  - The contractor will provide cost and attendance information on their participation in all DOE-sponsored conferences to DOE-RL for input in the DOE Conference Management Tool.
- h) For *non-contractor sponsored conferences*, the contractor shall develop and implement a process to ensure costs related to conferences are allowable, allocable, reasonable, and further the mission of DOE/NNSA. This process must at a minimum:
  - 1) Track all conference expenses.
  - 2) Require the Laboratory Director (or equivalent) or Chief Operating Officer approve a single conference with net costs to the contractor of \$100,000 or greater.
- i) Contractors are not required to enter information on non-sponsored conferences in DOE'S Conference Management Tool.
- j) Once funds have been expended on a non-sponsored conference, contractors may not authorize the use of their trademarks/logos for the conference, provide the conference planners with more than \$10,000 for specified individuals to participate in the conference, or provide any other sponsorship funding for the conference. If a contractor does so, its expenditures for the conference may be deemed unallowable.

# H.55 COST ESTIMATING SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

(a) *Definitions*.

Acceptable estimating system means an estimating system that complies with the system criteria in paragraph (d) of this clause, and provides for a system that—

- (1) Is maintained, reliable, and consistently applied;
- (2) Produces verifiable, supportable, documented, and timely cost estimates that are an acceptable basis for negotiation of fair and reasonable prices;
- (3) Is consistent with and integrated with the Contractor's related management systems; and

(4) Is subject to applicable financial control systems.

*Estimating system* means the Contractor's policies, procedures, and practices for budgeting and planning controls, and generating estimates of costs and other data included in proposals submitted to customers in the expectation of receiving contract awards or contract modifications. Estimating system includes the Contractor's—

- (1) Organizational structure;
- (2) Established lines of authority, duties, and responsibilities;
- (3) Internal controls and managerial reviews;
- (4) Flow of work, coordination, and communication; and
- (5) Budgeting, planning, estimating methods, techniques, accumulation of historical costs, and other analyses used to generate cost estimates.

*Significant deficiency* means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the system that is needed for management purposes.

- (b) *General.* The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and comply with an acceptable estimating system.
- (c) Applicability. Paragraphs (d) and (e) of this clause apply if the Contractor is a large business to include a contractor teaming arrangement, as defined at 48 CFR 9.601(1), performing a contract in support of a Capital Asset Project (other than a management and operating contract as described at 917.6), as prescribed in DOE Order (DOE O) 413.3B, or current version; or a non-capital asset project and either—
  - (1) The total prime contract value exceeds \$50 million, including options; or
  - (2) The Contractor was notified, in writing, by the Contracting Officer that paragraphs(d) and (e) of this clause apply.
- (d) System requirements.
  - (1) The Contractor shall disclose its estimating system to the Contracting Officer, in writing. If the Contractor wishes the Government to protect the information as privileged or confidential, the Contractor must mark the documents with the appropriate legends before submission. If the Contractor plans to adopt the existing system from the previous Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system requirements required in this clause.
  - (2) An estimating system disclosure is acceptable when the Contractor has provided the Contracting Officer with documentation no later than 60 days after contract award that—

- (i) Accurately describes those policies, procedures, and practices that the Contractor currently uses in preparing cost proposals; and
- (ii) Provides sufficient detail for the Government to reasonably make an informed judgment regarding the acceptability of the Contractor's estimating practices.
- (3) The Contractor shall—
  - (i) Comply with its disclosed estimating system; and
  - (ii) Disclose significant changes to the cost estimating system to the Contracting Officer on a timely basis.
- (4) The Contractor's estimating system shall provide for the use of appropriate source data, utilize sound estimating techniques and good judgment, maintain a consistent approach, and adhere to established policies and procedures. An acceptable estimating system shall accomplish the following functions:
  - (i) Establish clear responsibility for preparation, review, and approval of cost estimates and budgets.
  - (ii) Provide a written description of the organization and duties of the personnel responsible for preparing, reviewing, and approving cost estimates and budgets.
  - (iii) Ensure that relevant personnel have sufficient training, experience, and guidance to perform estimating and budgeting tasks in accordance with the Contractor's established procedures.
  - (iv) Identify and document the sources of data and the estimating methods and rationale used in developing cost estimates and budgets.
  - (v) Provide for adequate supervision throughout the estimating and budgeting process.
  - (vi) Provide for consistent application of estimating and budgeting techniques.
  - (vii) Provide for detection and timely correction of errors.
  - (viii) Protect against cost duplication and omissions.
  - (ix) for the use of historical experience, including historical vendor pricing information, where appropriate.
  - (x) Require use of appropriate analytical methods.
  - (xi) Integrate information available from other management systems.

- (xii) Require management review, including verification of compliance with the company's estimating and budgeting policies, procedures, and practices.
- (xiii) Provide for internal review of, and accountability for, the acceptability of the estimating system, including the budgetary data supporting indirect cost estimates and comparisons of projected results to actual results, and an analysis of any differences.
- (xiv) Provide procedures to update cost estimates and notify the Contracting Officer in a timely manner.
- (xv) Provide procedures that ensure subcontract prices are reasonable based on a documented review and analysis provided with the prime proposal, when practicable.
- (xvi) ) Provide estimating and budgeting practices that consistently generate sound proposals that are compliant with the provisions of the solicitation and are adequate to serve as a basis to reach a fair and reasonable price.
- (xvii) Have an adequate system description, including policies, procedures, and estimating and budgeting practices, that comply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 1) and Department of Energy Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 9).
- (e) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contracting Officer will provide an initial determination to the Contractor, in writing, of any significant deficiencies. The initial determination will describe the deficiency in sufficient detail to allow the Contractor to understand the deficiency.
  - (2) The Contractor shall respond within 30 days to a written initial determination from the Contracting Officer that identifies significant deficiencies in the Contractor's estimating system. If the Contractor disagrees with the initial determination, the Contractor shall state, in writing, its rationale for disagreeing. In the event the Contractor did not respond in writing to the initial determination within the response time, this lack of response shall indicate that the Contractor agrees with the initial determination.
  - (3) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response or the Contractor's lack of response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the Contracting Officer's final determination concerning—
    - (i) Remaining significant deficiencies;
    - (ii) The adequacy of any proposed or completed corrective action; and

- (iii) System disapproval, if the Contracting Officer determines that one or more significant deficiencies remain.
- (f) If the Contractor receives the Contracting Officer's final determination of significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the final determination, either correct the significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the significant deficiencies.
- (g) *Withholding payments*. If the Contracting Officer makes a final determination to disapprove the Contractor's estimating system, and the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments in accordance with that clause.

## H.56 EARNED VALUE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause-

Acceptable earned value management system means an earned value management system that generally complies with system criteria in paragraph (b) of this clause.

*Earned value management system* means an earned value management system that complies with the earned value management system guidelines in the ANSI/EIA-748.

*Over Target Baseline* means an overrun to the Contract Budget Base (CBB) which is formally incorporated into the Performance Measurement Baseline (PMB) for management purposes.

*Over Target Schedule* means the term used to describe a condition where a baseline schedule is time-phased beyond the contract completion date.

*Significant deficiency* means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the system that is needed for management purposes.

- (b) System criteria. In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall use-
  - An Earned Value Management System (EVMS) that complies with the EVMS guidelines in the American National Standards Institute/Electronic Industries Alliance Standard 748, Earned Value Management Systems (ANSI/EIA-748, current version at time of award); and
  - (2) Management procedures.
    - (*i*) Management procedures provide for generation of timely, reliable, and verifiable information for DOE Integrated Program Management Report (IPMR) data item of this contract.
    - (ii) The Contractor shall use Department of Defense's Data Item Description (DID) Integrated Program Management Report (IPMR), DI-MGMT-81861, (current version at time of award) which contains data for measuring cost and schedule performance for this DOE contract. The report's structure has seven formats

that contain the content and relationships required for electronic submissions. DOE does not use section 2.8 Applicability of DI-MGMT-81861 for electronic data submissions, in lieu of this section, the Contractor shall use Project Assessment and Reporting System (PARS II). Data shall be submitted by the Contractor electronically by uploading the data into the PARS II in accordance with the —Contractor Project Performance Upload RequirementsII document maintained by the DOE Office of Acquisition and Project Management (OAPM). All requested data shall be submitted timely and accurately, and shall be current as of the close of the previous month's accounting period.

- (c) If the Contractor has one or more DOE contracts valued at \$20,000,000 or greater per contract for a total contract value of \$50,000,000 or more which support DOE Capital Asset Projects, the Contractor shall use an EVMS that has been determined to be acceptable by DOE. If, at the time of award, the Contractor's EVMS has not been determined by DOE to be in compliance with the EVMS guidelines as stated in paragraph (b)(1) of this clause, the Contractor shall apply its current system to the contract and shall take necessary actions to meet the milestones n the Contractor's EVMS plan.
- (d) If this contract has a total value of less than \$50,000,000 and does not meet the condition described at (c) above, the Government will not make a formal determination that the Contractor's EVMS complies with the EVMS guidelines in ANSI/EIA-748 with respect to the contract. The use of the Contractor's EVMS for this contract does not imply a Government determination of the Contractor's compliance with the EVMS guidelines in ANSI/EIA-748 for application to future contracts.
- (e) The Contractor shall submit notification of all proposed changes to the EVMS procedures and the impact of those changes to DOE. If this contractor has one or more contracts in support of DOE Capital Asset Projects and the total contract values are \$20,000,000 or greater per contract for total contract values of \$50,000,000 or more, unless a waiver is granted by DOE, any EVMS changes proposed by the Contractor require approval of DOE prior to implementation. DOE will advise the Contractor of the acceptability of such changes as soon as practicable (generally within 30 calendar days) after receipt of the Contractor's notice of proposed changes. If DOE waives the advance approval requirements, the Contractor shall disclose EVMS changes to DOE at least 14 calendar days prior to the effective date of implementation.
- (f) Integrated baseline reviews.
  - (1) The purpose of the integrated baseline reviews (IBR) is to verify the technical content and the realism of the related performance budgets, resources, and schedules. It should provide a mutual understanding of the inherent risks in the offerors'/contractors' performance plans and the underlying management control systems, and it should formulate a plan to handle these risks. DOE and the Contractor will use the IBR process described in the National Defense Industrial Association Program Management Systems Committee Integrated Baseline Review (NDIA PMSC IBR) Guide (current version at time of award).
  - (2) The Government will schedule IBRs as early as practicable, and the review process will be conducted not later than 180 calendar days after—

- (i) Contract award;
- (ii) The exercise of significant contract options; and
- (iii) The incorporation of major modifications.

During such reviews, the Government and the Contractor will jointly assess the Contractor's baseline to be used for performance measurement to ensure complete coverage of the statement of work, logical scheduling of the work activities, adequate resourcing, and identification of inherent risks.

- (g) The Contractor shall provide access to all pertinent records and data requested by the Contracting Officer or duly authorized representative as necessary to permit Government surveillance to ensure that the EVMS complies, and continues to comply, with the performance criteria referenced in paragraph (b) of this clause.
- (h) When indicated by contract performance, the Contractor shall submit a request for approval to initiate an over-target baseline or over-target schedule to the Contracting Officer. The request shall include a top-level projection of cost and/or schedule growth, a determination of whether or not performance variances will be retained, and a schedule of implementation for the rebaselining. The Government will acknowledge receipt of the request in a timely manner (generally within 30 calendar days).
- (i) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contracting Officer will provide an initial determination to the Contractor, in writing, on any significant deficiencies. The initial determination will describe the deficiency in sufficient detail to allow the Contractor to understand the deficiency.
  - (2) The Contractor shall respond within 30 days to a written initial determination from the Contracting Officer that identifies significant deficiencies in the Contractor's EVMS. If the Contractor disagrees with the initial determination, the Contractor shall state, in writing, its rationale for disagreeing. In the event the Contractor did not respond in writing to the initial determination within the response time, this lack of response shall indicate that the Contractor agrees with the initial determination.
  - (3) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response or the Contractor's lack of response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the Contracting Officer's final determination concerning—
    - (i) Remaining significant deficiencies;
    - (ii) The adequacy of any proposed or completed corrective action;
    - (iii) System noncompliance, when the Contractor's existing EVMS fails to comply

with the earned value management system guidelines in the ANSI/EIA-748; and

- (iv) System disapproval, if initial EVMS validation is not successfully completed within the timeframe approved by the Contracting Officer, or if the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor's earned value management system contains one or more significant deficiencies in highrisk guidelines in ANSI/EIA-748 standards (guidelines 1, 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 16, 21, 23, 26, 27, 28, 30, or 32). When the Contracting Officer determines that the existing earned value management system contains one or more significant deficiencies in one or more of the remaining 16 guidelines in ANSI/EIA-748 standards, the contracting officer will use discretion to disapprove the system based on input received from the DOE Office of Acquisition and Project Management or the DOE Program Office, herein referred to as the functional specialists.
- (4) If the Contractor receives the Contracting Officer's final determination of significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the final determination, either correct the significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the significant deficiencies.
- (j) *Withholding payments.* If the Contracting Officer makes a final determination to disapprove the Contractor's EVMS, and the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments in accordance with that clause.
- (k) With the exception of paragraphs (i) and (j) of this clause, for contracts valued at \$20 million or more requiring EVMS, the contractor shall flow down appropriate EVMS requirements to its subcontractors in order for the contractor to meet all requirements of this clause.

Lockheed Martin Integrated Technology, LLC; Jacobs Engineering Group, LLC; Wackenhut Services, Inc; Computer Sciences Corporation; and future subcontractors that meet the definition of teaming subcontractors as defined by FAR 9.6.

- (1) Adopting previous Contractor's previously certified earned value management (EVM) process. If the Contractor plans to adopt the existing system from the previous Contractor or DOE-site, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system requirements required in this clause. The existing system shall utilize the same DOE approved EVM Process Description and the same EVM training as the previous system. The Contractor shall
  - (1) Identify the corporate entity which owns the certified EVM process and provide the certification documentation;

- (2) Obtain DOE prior approval or Advanced Agreement including DOE approval of process changes and joint surveillance;
- (3) Be responsible for compliance with the system criteria required in paragraph (b) of this clause; and
- (4) Be responsible for correcting any significant deficiencies previously identified to the previous Contractor by the Contracting Officer in accordance with paragraph (i) of this clause. Within 45 days after receiving a copy of the previous contractor's final determination, the Contractor shall follow paragraph (i)(4) and either correct any significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan. The Contracting Officer or designee, will provide a copy of the previous contractor's final determination.

## H.57 CONTRACTOR BUSINESS SYSTEMS

- (a) This clause only applies to fixed-price contract awarded to a large business on the basis of adequate price competition with or without submission of cost or pricing data; or covered contract that is subject to the Cost Accounting Standards under 41 U.S.C. chapter 15, as implemented in regulations found at 48 CFR 9903.201-1(a) and is not exempted at 9903.201-1(b)(1) through (14) (see the 48 CFR Appendix).
- (b) Definitions. As used in this clause—

Acceptable contractor business systems means contractor business systems that comply with the terms and conditions of the applicable business system clauses listed in the definition of contractor business systems in this clause.

Contractor business systems means—

- (1) Accounting system, if this contract includes the Section H clause Accounting System Administration;
- (2) Earned value management system, if this contract includes the Section H clause Earned Value Management System;
- (3) Estimating system, if this contract includes the Section H clause Cost Estimating System Requirements;
- (4) Property management system, if this contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Property Management System Administration; and
- (5) Purchasing system, if this contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Purchasing System Administration.

*Significant deficiency,* in the case of a contractor business system, means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the system that is needed for management purposes.

- (c) *General.* The Contractor shall establish and maintain acceptable business systems in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract. If the Contractor plans to adopt any existing business system from the previous Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system requirements and criteria required in that specific business system clause.
- (d) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contractor shall respond, in writing, within 30 days to an initial determination that there are one or more significant deficiencies in one or more of the Contractor's business systems.
  - (2) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the final determination as to whether the Contractor's business system contains significant deficiencies. If the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor's business system contains significant deficiencies, the final determination will include a notice to withhold payments.
- (e) Withholding payments.
  - (1) If the Contracting Officer issues the final determination with a notice to withhold payments for significant deficiencies in a contractor business system required under this contract, the Contracting Officer will direct the Contractor, in writing, to withhold five percent from its invoices until the Contracting Officer has determined that the Contractor has corrected all significant deficiencies as directed by the Contracting Officer's final determination. The Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the notice, either –
    - (i) Correct the deficiencies; or
    - (ii) Submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the deficiencies. The plan shall contain—
      - (A) Root cause(s) identification of the problem(s);
      - (B) The proposed corrective action(s) to address the root cause(s);
      - (C) A schedule for implementation; and
      - (D) The name of the person responsible for the implementation.
  - (2) If the Contractor submits an acceptable corrective action plan within 45 days of receipt of a notice of the Contracting Officer's intent to withhold payments, and the Contracting Officer, in consultation with the auditor or functional specialist, determines that the Contractor is effectively implementing such plan, the Contracting Officer will direct the Contractor, in writing, to reduce the percentage withheld on invoices to two percent until the Contracting Officer determines the Contractor has corrected all significant deficiencies as directed by the Contracting Officer's final determination. However, if at any time, the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has failed to follow the accepted corrective action plan, the Contracting Officer will increase withholding and direct the Contractor, in writing, to increase the percentage withheld on invoices to the

percentage initially withheld, until the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has corrected all significant deficiencies as directed by the Contracting Officer's final determination.

- (3) Payment withhold percentage limits.
  - (i) The total percentage of payments withheld on amounts due on this contract shall not exceed—
    - (A) Five percent for one or more significant deficiencies in any single contractor business system; and
    - (B) Ten percent for significant deficiencies in multiple contractor business systems.
  - (ii) If this contract contains pre-existing withholds, and the application of any subsequent payment withholds will cause withholding under this clause to exceed the payment withhold percentage limits in paragraph (e)(3)(i) of this clause, the Contracting Officer will reduce the payment withhold percentage in the final determination to an amount that will not exceed the payment withhold percentage limits.
- (4) For the purpose of this clause, payment means invoicing for any of the following payments authorized under this contract:
  - (i) Interim payments under-
    - (A) Cost-reimbursement contracts;
    - (B) Incentive type contracts;
    - (C) Time-and-materials contracts; or
    - (D) Labor-hour contracts.
  - (ii) Progress payments to include fixed-price contracts.
  - (iii) Performance-based payments to include fixed-price contracts.
- (5) Payment withholding shall not apply to payments on fixed-price line items where performance is complete and the items were accepted by the Government.
- (6) The withholding of any amount or subsequent payment to the Contractor shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights or remedies the Government has under this contract.
- (7) Notwithstanding the provisions of any clause in this contract providing for interim, partial, or other payment withholding on any basis, the Contracting Officer may withhold payment in accordance with the provisions of this clause.

- (8) The payment withholding authorized in this clause is not subject to the interest- penalty provisions of the Prompt Payment Act.
- (f) Correction of deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer, in writing, when the Contractor has corrected the business system's deficiencies.
  - (2) Once the Contractor has notified the Contracting Officer that all deficiencies have been corrected, the Contracting Officer will take one of the following actions:
    - (i) If the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has corrected all significant deficiencies as directed by the Contracting Officer's final determination, the Contracting Officer will direct the Contractor, in writing, to discontinue the payment withholding from invoices under this contract associated with the Contracting Officer's final determination, and authorize the Contractor to bill for any monies previously withheld that are not also being withheld due to other significant deficiencies. Any payment withholding under this contract due to other significant deficiencies, will remain in effect until the Contracting Officer determines that those significant deficiencies are corrected.
    - (ii) If the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor still has significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall continue withholding amounts from its invoices in accordance with paragraph (e) of this clause, and not invoice for any monies previously withheld.
    - (iii) If the Contracting Officer determines, based on the evidence submitted by the Contractor, that there is a reasonable expectation that the corrective actions have been implemented and are expected to correct the significant deficiencies, the Contracting Officer will discontinue withholding payments, and release any payments previously withheld directly related to the significant deficiencies identified in the Contractor notification, and direct the Contractor, in writing, to discontinue the payment withholding from invoices associated with the Contracting Officer's final determination, and authorize the Contractor to bill for any monies previously withheld.
    - (iv) If, within 90 days of receipt of the Contractor notification that the Contractor has corrected the significant deficiencies, the Contracting Officer has not made a determination in accordance with paragraphs (f)(2)(i), (ii), or (iii) of this clause, the Contracting Officer will direct the Contractor, in writing, to reduce the payment withholding from invoices directly related to the significant deficiencies identified in the Contractor notification by a specified percentage that is at least 50 percent, but not authorize the Contractor to bill for any monies previously withheld until the Contracting Officer makes a determination in accordance with paragraphs (f)(2)(i), (ii), or (iii) of this clause.

(v) At any time after the Contracting Officer directs the Contractor to reduce or discontinue the payment withholding from invoices under this contract, if the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has failed to correct the significant deficiencies identified in the Contractor's notification, the Contracting Officer will reinstate or increase withholding and direct the Contractor, in writing, to reinstate or increase the percentage withheld on invoices to the percentage initially withheld, until the Contracting Officer determines that the Contractor has corrected all significant deficiencies as directed by the Contracting Officer's final determination.

# H.58 ACCOUNTING SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

- (a) *Definitions.* As used in this clause—
  - (1) Acceptable accounting system means a system that complies with the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause to provide reasonable assurance that—
    - (i) Applicable laws and regulations are complied with;
    - (ii) The accounting system and cost data are reliable;
    - (iii) Risk of misallocations and mischarges are minimized; and
    - (iv) Contract allocations and charges are consistent with billing procedures.
  - (2) Accounting system means the Contractor's system or systems for accounting methods, procedures, and controls established to gather, record, classify, analyze, summarize, interpret, and present accurate and timely financial data for reporting in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and management decisions, and may include subsystems for specific areas such as indirect and other direct costs, compensation, billing, labor, and general information technology.
  - (3) Significant deficiency means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the system that is needed for management purposes.
- (b) General. The Contractor shall establish and maintain an acceptable accounting system. If the Contractor plans to adopt the existing system from the previous Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system criteria required in this clause. The Contractor shall provide in writing to the Contracting Officer documentation that its accounting system meets the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause no later than 60 days after contract award. Failure to maintain an acceptable accounting system, as defined in this clause, shall result in the withholding of payments if the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, and also may result in disapproval of the system.
- (c) System criteria. The Contractor's accounting system shall provide for-

- (1) A sound internal control environment, accounting framework, and organizational structure;
- (2) Proper segregation of direct costs from indirect costs;
- (3) Identification and accumulation of direct costs by contract;
- (4) A logical and consistent method for the accumulation and allocation of indirect costs to intermediate and final cost objectives;
- (5) Accumulation of costs under general ledger control;
- (6) Reconciliation of subsidiary cost ledgers and cost objectives to general ledger;
- (7) Approval and documentation of adjusting entries;
- (8) Management reviews or internal audits of the system to ensure compliance with the Contractor's established policies, procedures, and accounting practices;
- (9) A timekeeping system that identifies employees' labor by intermediate or final cost objectives;
- (10) A labor distribution system that charges direct and indirect labor to the appropriate cost objectives;
- (11) Interim (at least monthly) determination of costs charged to a contract through routine posting of books of account;
- (12) Exclusion from costs charged to Government contracts of amounts which are not allowable in terms of 48 CFR part 31, Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, and other contract provisions;
- (13) Identification of costs by contract line item and by units (as if each unit or line item were a separate contract), if required by the contract;
- (14) Segregation of preproduction costs from production costs, as applicable;
- (15) Cost accounting information, as required—
  - By contract clauses concerning limitation of cost (48 CFR 52.232-20), limitation of funds (48 CFR 52.232-22), or allowable cost and payment (48 CFR 52.216-7); and
  - (ii) To readily calculate indirect cost rates from the books of accounts;
- (16) Billings that can be reconciled to the cost accounts for both current and cumulative amounts claimed and comply with contract terms;

- (17) Adequate, reliable data for use in pricing follow-on acquisitions; and
- (18) Accounting practices in accordance with standards promulgated by the Cost Accounting Standards Board, if applicable, otherwise, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
- (d) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contracting Officer will provide an initial determination to the Contractor, in writing, on any significant deficiencies. The initial determination will describe the deficiency in sufficient detail to allow the Contractor to understand the deficiency.
  - (2) The Contractor shall respond within 30 days to a written initial determination from the Contracting Officer that identifies significant deficiencies in the Contractor's accounting system. If the Contractor disagrees with the initial determination, the Contractor shall state, in writing, its rationale for disagreeing. In the event the Contractor did not respond in writing to the initial determination within the response time, this lack of response shall indicate that the Contractor agrees with the initial determination.
  - (3) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response or the Contractor's lack of response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the Contracting Officer's final determination concerning—
    - (i) Remaining significant deficiencies;
    - (ii) The adequacy of any proposed or completed corrective action; and
    - (iii) System disapproval, if the Contracting Officer determines that one or more significant deficiencies remain.
- (e) If the Contractor receives the Contracting Officer's final determination of significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the final determination, either correct the significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the significant deficiencies.
- (f) *Withholding payments.* If the Contracting Officer makes a final determination to disapprove the Contractor's accounting system, and the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments in accordance with that clause.

## H.59 CONTRACTOR PURCHASING SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause-

Acceptable purchasing system means a purchasing system that complies with the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause.

*Purchasing system* means the Contractor's system or systems for purchasing and subcontracting, including make-or-buy decisions, the selection of vendors, analysis of quoted prices, negotiation of prices with vendors, placing and administering of orders, and expediting delivery of materials.

*Significant deficiency* means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the

system that is needed for management purposes.

- (b) General. The Contractor shall establish and maintain an acceptable purchasing system. If the Contractor plans to adopt the existing system from the previous Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system criteria required in this clause. The Contractor shall provide in writing to the Contracting Officer documentation that its purchasing system meets the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause no later than 60 days after contract award. Failure to maintain an acceptable purchasing system, as defined in this clause, may result in disapproval of the system by the Contracting Officer and/or withholding of payments.
- (c) System criteria. The Contractor's purchasing system shall-
  - Have an adequate system description including policies, procedures, and purchasing practices that comply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) (48 CFR Chapter 1) and the Department of Energy Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR Chapter 9);
  - (2) Ensure that all applicable purchase orders and subcontracts contain all flowdown clauses, including terms and conditions and any other clauses needed to carry out the requirements of the prime contract;
  - (3) Maintain an organization plan that establishes clear lines of authority and responsibility;
  - (4) Ensure all purchase orders are based on authorized requisitions and include a complete and accurate history of purchase transactions to support vendor selected, price paid, and document the subcontract/purchase order files which are subject to Government review;
  - (5) Establish and maintain adequate documentation to provide a complete and accurate history of purchase transactions to support vendors selected and prices paid;
  - (6) Apply a consistent make-or-buy policy that is in the best interest of the Government;

- Use competitive sourcing to the maximum extent practicable, and ensure debarred or suspended contractors are properly excluded from contract award;
- (8) Evaluate price, quality, delivery, technical capabilities, and financial capabilities of competing vendors to ensure fair and reasonable prices;
- (9) Require management level justification and adequate cost or price analysis, as applicable, for any sole or single source award;
- (10) perform timely and adequate cost or price analysis and technical evaluation for each subcontractor and supplier proposal or quote to ensure fair and reasonable subcontract prices;
- (11) Document negotiations in accordance with 48 CFR 15.406-3;
- (12) Seek, take, and document economically feasible purchase discounts, including cash discounts, trade discounts, quantity discounts, rebates, freight allowances, and company- wide volume discounts;
- (13) Ensure proper type of contract selection and prohibit issuance of costplus-a- percentage-of-cost subcontracts;
- (14) Maintain subcontract surveillance to ensure timely delivery of an acceptable product and procedures to notify the Government of potential subcontract problems that may impact delivery, quantity, or price;
- (15) Document and justify reasons for subcontract changes that affect cost or price;
- (16) Notify the Government of the award of all subcontracts that contain the 48 CFR Chapter 1 and 48 CFR Chapter 9 flowdown clauses that allow for Government audit of those subcontracts, and ensure the performance of audits of those subcontracts;
- (17) Enforce adequate policies on conflict of interest, gifts, and gratuities, including the requirements of the 41 U.S.C. chapter 87, Kickbacks;
- (18) Perform internal audits or management reviews, training, and maintain policies and procedures for the purchasing department to ensure the integrity of the purchasing system;
- (19) Establish and maintain policies and procedures to ensure purchase orders and subcontracts contain mandatory and applicable flowdown clauses, as required by the 48 CFR chapter 1, including terms and conditions required by the prime contract and any clauses required to carry out the requirements of the prime contract;
- (20) Provide for an organizational and administrative structure that ensures

effective and efficient procurement of required quality materials and parts at the best value from responsible and reliable sources;

- (21) Establish and maintain selection processes to ensure the most responsive and responsible sources for furnishing required quality parts and materials and to promote competitive sourcing among dependable suppliers so that purchases are reasonably priced and from sources that meet contractor quality requirements;
- (22) Establish and maintain procedures to ensure performance of adequate price or cost analysis on purchasing actions;
- (23) Establish and maintain procedures to ensure that proper types of subcontracts are selected, and that there are controls over subcontracting, including oversight and surveillance of subcontracted effort; and
- (24) Establish and maintain procedures to timely notify the Contracting Officer, in writing, if—
  - (i) The Contractor changes the amount of subcontract effort after award such that it exceeds 70 percent of the total cost of the work to be performed under the contract, task order, or delivery order. The notification shall identify the revised cost of the subcontract effort and shall include verification that the Contractor will provide added value; or
  - (ii) Any subcontractor changes the amount of lower-tier subcontractor effort after award such that it exceeds 70 percent of the total cost of the work to be performed under its subcontract. The notification shall identify the revised cost of the subcontract effort and shall include verification that the subcontractor will provide added value as related to the work to be performed by the lowertier subcontractor(s).
- (d) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contracting Officer will provide notification of initial determination to the Contractor, in writing, of any significant deficiencies. The initial determination will describe the deficiency in sufficient detail to allow the Contractor to understand the deficiency.
  - (2) The Contractor shall respond within 30 days to a written initial determination from the Contracting Officer that identifies significant deficiencies in the Contractor's purchasing system. If the Contractor disagrees with the initial determination, the Contractor shall state, in writing, its rationale for disagreeing. In the event the Contractor did not respond in writing to the initial determination within the response time, this lack of response shall indicate that the Contractor agrees with the initial determination.
  - (3) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response or the Contractor's lack of response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the Contracting Officer's final determination concerning—

- (i) Remaining significant deficiencies;
- (ii) The adequacy of any proposed or completed corrective action; and
- (iii) System disapproval, if the Contracting Officer determines that one or more significant deficiencies remain.
- (e) If the Contractor receives the Contracting Officer's final determination of significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the final determination, either correct the significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the deficiencies.
- (f) *Withholding payments.* If the Contracting Officer makes a final determination to disapprove the Contractor's purchasing system, and the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments in accordance with that clause.

## H.60 CONTRACTOR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause—

Acceptable property management system means a property system that complies with the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause.

*Property management system* means the Contractor's system or systems for managing and controlling Government property.

*Significant deficiency* means a shortcoming in the system that materially affects the ability of officials of the Department of Energy to rely upon information produced by the

system that is needed for management purposes.

- (b) General. The Contractor shall establish and maintain an acceptable property management system. If the Contractor plans to adopt the existing system from the previous Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for the system and shall comply with the system criteria required in this clause. The Contractor shall provide in writing to the Contracting Officer documentation that its property management system meets the system criteria in paragraph (c) of this clause no later than 60 days after contract award. Failure to maintain an acceptable property management system, as defined in this clause, may result in disapproval of the system by the Contracting Officer and/or withholding of payments.
- (c) *System criteria.* The Contractor's property management system shall be in accordance with paragraph (f) of the contract clause at 48 CFR 52.245-1.
- (d) Significant deficiencies.
  - (1) The Contracting Officer will provide an initial determination to the Contractor, in

writing, of any significant deficiencies. The initial determination will describe the deficiency in sufficient detail to allow the Contractor to understand the deficiency.

- (2) The Contractor shall respond within 30 days to a written initial determination from the Contracting Officer that identifies significant deficiencies in the Contractor's property management system. If the Contractor disagrees with the initial determination, the Contractor shall state, in writing, its rationale for disagreeing. In the event the Contractor did not respond in writing to the initial determination within the response time, this lack of response shall indicate that the Contractor agrees with the initial determination.
- (3) The Contracting Officer will evaluate the Contractor's response or the Contractor's lack of response and notify the Contractor, in writing, of the Contracting Officer's final determination concerning—
  - (i) Remaining significant deficiencies;
  - (ii) The adequacy of any proposed or completed corrective action; and
  - (iii) System disapproval, if the Contracting Officer determines that one or more significant deficiencies remain.
- (e) If the Contractor receives the Contracting Officer's final determination of significant deficiencies, the Contractor shall, within 45 days of receipt of the final determination, either correct the significant deficiencies or submit an acceptable corrective action plan showing milestones and actions to eliminate the significant deficiencies.
- (f) *Withholding payments.* If the Contracting Officer makes a final determination to disapprove the Contractor's property management system, and the contract includes the Section H clause Contractor Business Systems, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments in accordance with that clause.

## H.61 MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE PROGRAMS

## **1. BASIC REQUIREMENTS**

- a. Maintain commercial insurance or a self-insured program, (i.e., any insurance policy or coverage that protects the contractor from the risk of legal liability for adverse actions associated with its operation, including malpractice, injury, or negligence) as required by the terms of the contract. Types of insurance include automobile, general liability, and other third party liability insurance. Other forms of coverage must be justified as necessary in the operation of the Department facility and/or the performance of the contract, and approved by the DOE.
- b. Contractors shall not purchase insurance to cover public liability for nuclear incidents without DOE authorization (See DEAR 950.5070, Indemnification and DEAR 950.70, Nuclear Indemnification of DOE Contractors).

- c. Demonstrate that insurance programs and costs comply with the cost limitations and exclusions at FAR 28.307, Insurance Under Cost Reimbursement Contracts; and FAR 31.205-19, DEAR 931.205-19, and DEAR 970.3102-05-19, Insurance and Indemnification.
- d. Demonstrate that the insurance program is being conducted in the government's best interest and at reasonable cost.
- e. The contractor shall submit copies of all insurance policies or insurance arrangements to the contracting officer no later than 30 days after the purchase date.
- f. When purchasing commercial insurance, the contractor shall use a competitive process to ensure costs are reasonable.
- g. Ensure self-insurance programs include the following elements:
  - (1) Compliance with criteria set forth in FAR 28.308, Self-Insurance. Approval of self-insurance is predicated upon submission of verifiable proof that the self-insurance charge does not exceed the cost of purchased insurance. This includes hybrid plans (i.e., commercially purchased insurance with self-insured retention (SIR) such as large deductible, matching deductible, retrospective rating cash flow plans, and other plans where insurance reserves are under the control of the insured). The SIR components of such plans are self-insurance and are subject to the approval and submission requirements of FAR 28.308, as applicable.
  - (2) Demonstration of full compliance with applicable state and federal regulations and related professional administration necessary for participation in alternative insurance programs.
  - (3) Safeguards to ensure third party claims and claims settlements are processed in accordance with approved procedures.
  - (4) Accounting of self-insurance charges.
  - (5) Accrual of self-insurance reserve. The Contracting Officer's approval is required and predicated upon the following:
    - (a) The claims reserve shall be held in a special fund or interest bearing account.
    - (b) Submission of a formal written statement to the Contracting Officer stating that use of the reserve is exclusively for the payment of insurance claims and losses, and that DOE shall receive its equitable share of any excess funds or reserve.

- (c) Annual accounting and justification as to the reasonableness of the claims reserve submitted for Contracting Officer's review.
- (d) Claim reserves, not payable within the year the loss occurred, are discounted to present value based on the prevailing Treasury rate.
- Separately identify and account for interest cost on a Letter of Credit used to guarantee self-insured retention, as an unallowable cost and omitted from charges to the DOE contract.
- i. Comply with the Contracting Officer's written direction for ensuring the continuation of insurance coverage and settlement of incurred and/or open claims and payments of premiums owed or owing to the insurer for prior DOE contractors.

# 2. PLAN EXPERIENCE REPORTING.

- (a) The Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer with annual experience reports for each type of insurance (e.g., automobile and general liability), listing the following for each category:
  - (1) The amount paid for each claim.
  - (2) The amount reserved for each claim.
  - (3) The direct expenses related to each claim.
  - (4) A summary for the year showing total number of claims.
  - (5) A total amount for claims paid.
  - (6) A total amount reserved for claims.
  - (7) The total amount of direct expenses.
- b. Provide the Contracting Officer with an annual report of insurance costs and/or selfinsurance charges. When applicable, separately identify total policy expenses (e.g., commissions, premiums, and costs for claims servicing) and major claims during the year, including those expected to become major claims (e.g., those claims valued at \$100,000 or greater)
- c. Provide additional claim financial experience data as may be requested on a case-bycase basis.
- 3. TERMINATING OPERATIONS.

The Contractor shall:

- a. Ensure protection of the government's interest through proper recording of cancellation credits due to policy terminations and/or experience rating.
- b. Identify and provide continuing insurance policy administration and management requirements to a successor, other DOE contractor, or as specified by the Contracting Officer.
- c. Reach agreement with DOE on the handling and settlement of self insurance claims incurred but not reported at the time of contract termination; otherwise, the contractor shall retain this liability.
- 4. SUCCESSOR CONTRACTOR OR INSURANCE POLICY CANCELLATION.

The Contractor shall:

- a. Obtain the written approval of the Contracting Officer for any change in program direction; and
- b. Ensure insurance coverage replacement is maintained as required and/or approved by the Contracting Officer.